
Vestavia Hills 
City Council Agenda 

April 8, 2019 
6:00 PM 

1. Call to Order              
2. Roll Call 
3. Invocation – Steve Dedmon, Vestavia Hills Chaplain 
4. Pledge Of Allegiance  
5. Announcements and Guest Recognition 

a. Announcement Of Vestavia Hills Board Of Education Applicants And Interviews 
To Begin On Wednesday, April 10, 2019 At 8 AM In The Executive Conference 
Room  

6. Proclamation – Day Of Prayer – April 23, 2019 
7. Proclamation – National Volunteer Recognition Week – April 7-13, 2019 
8. City Manager’s Report 
9. Councilors’ Reports 
10. Financial Reports – George Sawaya, Dep. Treasurer 
11. Approval of Minutes – March 11, 2019 (Regular Meeting), March 18, 2019 (Work Session) 

and March 18, 2019 (Regular Meeting 

Public Involvement Meeting 

12. Public Involvement Meeting – Pedestrian Bridge Across Montgomery Highway   (public 

hearing) 

Old Business 

13. Resolution Number 5148 – A Resolution Amending Resolution Number 5073 Dedicating 
Certain Streets In Liberty Park To The City Of Vestavia Hills, Alabama Pursuant To An 
Agreement For Maintenance And Repair   (public hearing) 

14. Ordinance Number 2833 – Rezoning – 4557 Pine Tree Circle; Lot 14, Topfield 
Subdivision; Rezoning From Vestavia Hills B-1 (Neighborhood Business District) To 
Vestavia Hills B-1 (Neighborhood Business District) With A Revised Site Plan  (public 

hearing) 

 

 



New Business 

15. Ordinance Number 2843 - An Ordinance Authorizing The Mayor And City Manager To 
Execute And Deliver An Agreement With New Cingular Wireless PCS, LLC For Location 
Of A Multi-Carrier Stealth Pole At The Sicard Hollow Athletic Complex Subject To 
Conditional Use Approval    

16. Resolution Number 5150 – A Resolution Approving A 140-Special Events Retail License 
For On-Premise Sale Of Alcohol For The 5th Annual Crawfish Boil Event To Be Held At 
2531 Rocky Ridge Road, Suite 107; Jacquelins, Inc., Applicant; Maria Esperanza Adan, 
Executive 

17. Resolution Number 5151 – A Resolution In Support Of House Bill Number 41, Introduced 
In The 2019 Regular Session Of The Alabama Legislature, To Discourage Teen Vaping 

New Business (Unanimous Consent Requested) 

First Reading (No Action Taken At This Meeting) 

18. Ordinance Number 2840 – Conditional Use Approval – 1506-1514 Montgomery 
Highway; Royal Automotive; Conditional Use Approval To Allow Lamar Advertising To 
Dismantle Twelve Billboard Faces On Six Free Standing Structures Within The City Limit 
Of The City Of Vestavia Hills And Allow The Erection And Operation Of An Free 
Standing Billboard Structure With Two Faces – One Face Reading To I-65 And The Other 
Reading To Montgomery Highway  (public hearing)  

19. Ordinance Number 2838 – Conditional Use Approval – 3788 Crosshaven Drive; Lot 5 
And The N 20’ Of Lot 4, Block 1, Glass’ 3rd Add To New Merkle; Conditional Use For 
Beekeeping; Installation And Maintenance Of Four (4) Beehives; St. Stephens Episcopal 
Church    (public hearing) 

20. Ordinance Number 2839 – Conditional Use Approval – 1476 Montgomery Highway; 
Conditional Use Approval For The Purpose Of Automotive Sales, Automotive Services – 
Major And Minor, Including But Not Limited To Mechanical And Collision Repair; Serra 
Automotive   (public hearing)  

21. Ordinance Number 2835 – Rezoning – 3984 And 3988 Nachez Drive; Lots 2 & 3, Block 
1, Hermitage Forest 1st Sector; Rezone From Vestavia Hills R-4 To Vestavia Hills R-9; 
Arthur Powell, Owner  (public hearing)   

22. Ordinance Number 2836 – Rezoning – 3785 Glass Drive; Lot 29, Glass’ 3rd Add To New 
Merkle; Rezoning From Vestavia Hills R-4 To Vestavia Hills R-9; Tucker And Company, 
LLC    (public hearing) 



23. Ordinance Number 2837 – Rezoning – 3784 Poe Drive; Lot 8, Block 3, Glass’ 3rd Add To 
New Merkle; Rezoning From Vestavia Hills R-4 To Vestavia Hills R-9; Jonathan B. 
Culver    (public hearing) 

24. Ordinance Number 2841 - An Ordinance Amending Section 5 Of Ordinance Number 2427 
And Section 10-14(E), Vestavia Hills Code Of Ordinances, Rep. 2013 Entitled 
“Educational Programs”    (public hearing) 

25. Ordinance Number 2842 – Annexation – Overnight – Magnolia Cove Subdivision; Lots 1 
through 13; Chase Beard, et al, Owners 

26. Citizen Comments      
27. Motion For Adjournment 



 
WHEREAS, service to others is a hallmark of the American character, and throughout our 

history citizens have stepped up to meet our challenges by volunteering in their 
communities; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama has men and women who selflessly dedicate 

their time and energy to performing acts of good will and improving the quality of 
life for others in their community; and   

 
WHEREAS, the countless hours of service by volunteers leads to the betterment of our 

communities and way of life; and  
 
WHEREAS,   there are abundant opportunities for residents of Vestavia Hills to volunteer and 

reap the rewards that come from helping others; and 
 
WHEREAS, the annual observance of National Volunteer Week sets aside an entire week 

dedicated to serving others in need and honor those who volunteer all year.   
 
NOW, THEREFORE, I, Ashley C. Curry, by virtue of the authority vested in me as Mayor of the 

City of Vestavia Hills in the State of Alabama, do hereby proclaim April 7 – 13, 
2019 as  

 
     NATIONAL VOLUNTEER RECOGNITION WEEK 

 
and encourage all residents to promote the spirit of volunteerism in our families 
and communities across the City. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have 
hereunto set my hand and caused the Seal 
of the City of Vestavia Hills to be affixed 
this the 8th day of April 2019. 
 
 
 
__________________________________
______ 
Ashley C. Curry 
Mayor 
 
 



WHEREAS, prayer is our communication with the Heavenly Father; and  
 

WHEREAS, it enables mankind to give thanks for the life we sometimes take for granted; and  
  

 
WHEREAS, prayer seems to soften our sorrow and make our griefs and hardships bearable; 

and  
 

WHEREAS, through prayer we can be prepared to become the instruments of His peace; and 
 

WHEREAS,  prayer is a candle that can rekindle the light that will repel the darkness in our 
midst; and 

 
WHEREAS,  by our unity others may know that we are one with the Father and His peace; and  

  
 

WHEREAS, only as we are filled with the power of God can we do the things the Lord wants 
of us in any area of our lives; and 

 
WHEREAS,  the annual Mayor’s Prayer Breakfast will be held Tuesday, April 23 at the 

Vestavia Country Club; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, I, Ashley C. Curry, by virtue of the authority vested in me as Mayor of the 

City of Vestavia Hills in the State of Alabama, do hereby proclaim April 23, 2019 
as a special 

 
       DAY OF PRAYER AND THANKSGIVING 
 
in Vestavia Hills and earnestly call upon all men of faith and goodwill to support 
this spiritual effort so that together we may offer prayer, praise and thanksgiving. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have 
hereunto set my hand and caused the Seal 
of the City of Vestavia Hills to be affixed 
this the 8th day of April 2019. 
 
 
 
__________________________________
______ 
Ashley C. Curry 
Mayor 
 
 



City Council Minutes 
March 11, 2019 

Page 1 
 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

MINUTES 
 

MARCH 11, 2019 
 

The City Council of Vestavia Hills met in regular session on this date at 6:00 PM, 
following publication and posting pursuant to Alabama law.  Mayor Curry called the meeting to 
order and the City Clerk called the roll with the following: 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:    Mayor Ashley C. Curry  

Rusty Weaver, Mayor Pro-Tem 
      Kimberly Cook, Councilor  

Paul Head, Councilor 
      George Pierce, Councilor 
 
OTHER OFFICIALS PRESENT:  Jeff Downes, City Manager 
      Patrick H. Boone, City Attorney 
      Rebecca Leavings, City Clerk 
      Melvin Turner, Finance Director 
      Dan Rary, Police Chief 
      Jason Hardin, Police Captain 
      Marvin Green, Fire Chief 
      Christopher Brady, City Engineer 
      Cinnamon McCulley, Communications Specialist 
      Brian Davis, Public Services Director 
 

Tom Bell, Vestavia Hills Chaplin, led the invocation followed by the Pledge of 
Allegiance. 
 
 

ANNOUNCEMENTS, GUEST RECOGNITION  
 

 Mrs. Cook stated that the City Council will begin receiving applications for an upcoming 
vacancy on the Vestavia Hills Board of Education.  Deadline for application is April 8 at 
5 PM.  Applications may be obtained online and interviews will be held on April 10 and 
16 at a time to be determined. 

 Mr. Pierce welcomed Chamber of Commerce member, Linda Parker, who was in 
attendance representing the Chamber.   

 Mr. Pierce recognized members of Leadership Vestavia who were in attendance.  He 
stated that members of this years’ class were required to attend one Council meeting. 

 The Mayor stated that there will be several upcoming City events, celebrating Alabama’s 
bicentennial.  The Mayor and Councilors Cook, Pierce and Head attended one of those 



City Council Minutes 
March 11, 2019 

Page 2 
 

events, hosted by the Senior Citizens Association, with entertainment provided by Three 
on a String. 

 Mr. Weaver recognized and welcomed high school students in attendance. 
 Mr. Pierce stated that he grew up in Auburn and he knows many residents in Beauregard, 

Alabama, recently devastated by tornadoes.  He stated that they don’t need items, but they 
need financial contributions.  He stated he has contacts for Providence Baptist Church for 
those contributions in case anyone wanted to give or assist. 

 
 

CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
 

 Mr. Downes stated that the City is self-insured for liability and the City’s risk is evaluated 
by an excess liability insurance carrier.  Mr. Downes shared an analysis of the overall 
trend of claims against the City.  He stated that the number of claims have dropped over 
the past few years.  He reminded the Council these are only claims and they don’t 
necessarily mean the City did anything wrong.  He then showed the five-year history of 
severity of claims paid, which also has trended well over the past five years.   Most of the 
claims are auto claims.  The frequency of “at fault” auto accidents has also fallen.  There 
was only one “at-fault” accident in the City last year.  Overall, from a risk management 
standpoint, the City is doing very well. 

 
 

COUNCILOR REPORTS 
 

 Mr. Pierce stated he will be attending the Chamber luncheon tomorrow, with the City 
Manager being the keynote speaker, discussing the Community Spaces Plan. 

 The Mayor announced the upcoming Freedom from Addiction for Opioid Awareness on 
April 4 at Vestavia Hills United Methodist Church. 

 Mr. Weaver stated that the Planning and Zoning Commission had a brief work session 
Wednesday and will meet in regular session on Thursday. 

 
 

FINANCIAL REPORTS 
 
 Mr. Turner, Finance Director, presented the financial reports for the month of January 
2019.  He read and explained the balances. 
 
 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
 The minutes of the following meeting were presented for approval:  February 18, 2019 
(Work Session). 
 
MOTION Motion to dispense with the reading of the minutes of the February 18, 2019 (Work 

Session) and approve them as presented was by Mr. Pierce and second by Mrs. 
Cook.  Roll call vote as follows: 



City Council Minutes 
March 11, 2019 

Page 3 
 

   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes    
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – abstain    
   Mayor Curry – yes   Motion carried. 
 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5131 
 

Resolution Number 5131 – Annexation – 90 day – 2424 Magnolia Cove; Lot 7, Magnolia 
Cove Estates; Chase Beard, Owner   (public hearing) 

 
 The Mayor stated that this Resolution, along with the following 12 Resolutions, are for 
the proposed annexation of the Magnolia Cove subdivision--a total of 13 lots.  He asked that there 
be one public hearing for all of these in order to address all issues and questions at one time.  
Some of the owners are present along with Mr. Beard, the developer and owner of five of the 
vacant lots. 
 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 5131 was by Mr. Weaver, seconded by 

Mrs. Cook. 
 
 Chase Beard, representing the homeowners and himself, stated that he owns almost half 
of the lots in this subdivision.  He stated that the other lots have been built-out and the community 
is interested in annexing into the City.  Following meetings, he spearheaded these requests to 
annex the entire neighborhood.  He stated that, currently, the completed homes are occupied, with 
no children in the subdivision and home values near and above half a million dollars. 
 
 Mr. Pierce gave the report from the Standing Annexation Committee, with no adverse 
information, except for the street.  The street has not been finished or accepted by the County.   
 
 Mr. Beard stated that the neighborhood is open to whatever is best for the City, in regard 
to whether it be private or public.  He stated he also plans on combining lots 7 and 6 into a single 
lot for development of one home.  Discussion followed about adjacent property owners’ concerns 
regarding drainage and development of these lots. 
 
 Mr. Pierce pointed out that this is a 90-day annexation.  He stated that the Resolutions 
shouldn’t be approved and then denied after the 90 days have expired. He stated one of the 
properties is currently tax-exempt but the property owner states sometimes he goes off the tax roll 
and some years he goes back onto the rolls.  He stated the City’s study shows that approximately 
78 properties in the City are currently tax-exempt.  He stated these properties go on and off the 
rolls, pursuant to state law. 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing. 
 



City Council Minutes 
March 11, 2019 

Page 4 
 

 Mrs. Cook stated that the Annexation Committee did discuss this request with the Board 
of Education and that they were pleased by the additional ad valorem annexation of this 
subdivision would provide. 
 
 Mr. Pierce stated that the City departments voiced no concerns over this annexation. 
 
 David Harwell, 1803 Catala Road, stated that Mr. Beard is developing six lots with two 
under construction.  If all of this is annexed, when will the City begin collecting sales taxes on 
building materials? 
 
 Mr. Boone stated that would be at the conclusion of the annexation. 
 
 There being no one further to address the Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing 
and called for the question. 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes    
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes    
   Mayor Curry – yes   Motion carried. 
 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5132 
 

Resolution Number 5132 – Annexation – 90 day – 2423 Magnolia Cove; Lot 8, Magnolia 
Cove Estates; Chase Beard, Owner   (public hearing) 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 5132 was by Mrs. Cook, seconded by Mr. 

Weaver. 
 
 There being no one further to address the Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing 
and called for the question. 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes    
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes    
   Mayor Curry – yes   Motion carried. 
 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5133 
 

Resolution Number 5133 – Annexation – 90 day – 2419 Magnolia Cove; Lot 9, Magnolia 
Cove Estates; Martin S. Cogen, Owner   (public hearing) 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 5133 was by Mr. Pierce, seconded by Mr. 

Weaver. 
 
 There being no one further to address the Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing 
and called for the question. 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes    
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes    



City Council Minutes 
March 11, 2019 

Page 5 
 

   Mayor Curry – yes   Motion carried. 
 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5134 
 

Resolution Number 5134 – Annexation – 90 day – 2415 Magnolia Cove; Lot 10, Magnolia 
Cove Estates; John and Lynda Gay, Owner   (public hearing) 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 5134 was by Mr. Weaver, seconded by 

Mrs. Cook. 
 
 There being no one further to address the Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing 
and called for the question. 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes    
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes    
   Mayor Curry – yes   Motion carried. 
 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5135 
 

Resolution Number 5135 – Annexation – 90 day – 2409 Magnolia Cove; Lot 11, Magnolia 
Cove Estates; David and Tammy Downard, Owner   (public hearing) 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 5135 was by Mr. Weaver, seconded by 

Mrs. Cook. 
 
 There being no one further to address the Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing 
and called for the question. 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes    
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes    
   Mayor Curry – yes   Motion carried. 
 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5136 
 

Resolution Number 5136 – Annexation – 90 day – 2405 Magnolia Cove; Lot 12, Magnolia 
Cove Estates; Thomas and Jane Walker, Owner   (public hearing) 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 5136 was by Mr. Weaver, seconded by Mr. 

Pierce. 
 
 There being no one further to address the Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing 
and called for the question. 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes    
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes    
   Mayor Curry – yes   Motion carried. 



City Council Minutes 
March 11, 2019 

Page 6 
 

 
 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5137 
 

Resolution Number 5137 – Annexation – 90 day – 2401 Magnolia Cove; Lot 13, Magnolia 
Cove Estates; Chase Beard, Owner   (public hearing) 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 5137 was by Mr. Weaver, seconded by Mr. 

Pierce. 
 
 There being no one further to address the Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing 
and called for the question. 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes    
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes    
   Mayor Curry – yes   Motion carried. 
 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5138 
 

Resolution Number 5138 – Annexation – 90 day – 2400 Magnolia Cove; Lot 1, Magnolia 
Cove Estates; Chase Beard, Owner   (public hearing) 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 5138 was by Mr. Weaver, seconded by 

Mrs. Cook. 
 
 There being no one further to address the Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing 
and called for the question. 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes    
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes    
   Mayor Curry – yes   Motion carried. 
 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5139 
 

Resolution Number 5139 – Annexation – 90 day – 2404 Magnolia Cove; Lot 2, Magnolia 
Cove Estates; Randel Walker, Owner   (public hearing) 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 5139 was by Mr. Weaver, seconded by 

Mrs. Cook. 
 
 There being no one further to address the Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing 
and called for the question. 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes    
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes    
   Mayor Curry – yes   Motion carried. 



City Council Minutes 
March 11, 2019 

Page 7 
 

 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5140 
 

Resolution Number 5140 – Annexation – 90 day – 2408 Magnolia Cove; Lot 3, Magnolia 
Cove Estates; David and Jenice Adcock, Owner   (public hearing) 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 5140 was by Mr. Weaver, seconded by Mr. 

Pierce. 
 
 There being no one further to address the Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing 
and called for the question. 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes    
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes    
   Mayor Curry – yes   Motion carried. 
 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5141 
 

Resolution Number 5141 – Annexation – 90 day – 2412 Magnolia Cove; Lot 4, Magnolia 
Cove Estates; Frank and Phyllis Hamrick, Owner   (public hearing) 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 5141 was by Mr. Weaver, seconded by Mr. 

Pierce. 
 
 There being no one further to address the Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing 
and called for the question. 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes    
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes    
   Mayor Curry – yes   Motion carried. 
 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5142 
 

Resolution Number 5142 – Annexation – 90 day – 2416 Magnolia Cove; Lot 5, Magnolia 
Cove Estates; Kay Watkins, Owner   (public hearing) 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 5142 was by Mr. Weaver, seconded by Mr. 

Head. 
 
 There being no one further to address the Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing 
and called for the question. 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes    
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes    
   Mayor Curry – yes   Motion carried. 
 



City Council Minutes 
March 11, 2019 

Page 8 
 

 
RESOLUTION NUMBER 5143 

 
Resolution Number 5143 – Annexation – 90 day – 2420 Magnolia Cove; Lot 6, Magnolia 

Cove Estates; Chase Beard, Owner   (public hearing) 
 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 5143 was by Mrs. Cook, seconded by Mr. 

Head. 
 
 There being no one further to address the Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing 
and called for the question. 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes    
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes    
   Mayor Curry – yes   Motion carried. 
 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5144 
 

Resolution Number 5144 – A Resolution Determining That Certain Personal Property Is 
Not Needed For Public Or Municipal Purposes And Directing The 
Sale/Disposal Of Said Surplus Property 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 5144 was by Mr. Weaver, seconded by Mr. 

Pierce. 
 
 Mr. Downes stated that this Resolution declares some old VHPD vehicles and motorcycles 
as surplus, along with some Public Services mowers. 
 
 The Mayor called for the question. 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes    
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes    
   Mayor Curry – yes   Motion carried. 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5145 
 

Resolution Number 5145 – A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Execute And 
Deliver An Agreement With Alabama Department Of Transportation To 
Construct A Turnout To Provide Access To Montgomery Highway At 
Waldridge Road 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 5145 was by Mr. Weaver, seconded by Mr. 

Pierce. 



City Council Minutes 
March 11, 2019 

Page 9 
 

 
 Mr. Downes stated that this is a part of the work at Wald Park and Community Spaces to 
develop several intersection improvements in Montgomery Highway rights-of-way. 
 
 The Mayor called for the question. 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes    
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes    
   Mayor Curry – yes   Motion carried. 
 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5146 
 

Resolution Number 5146 – A Resolution To Amend Resolution Numbers 5120, 3192, 3337 
And 3469 Authorizing The City Manager To Offer Continuing Health 
Insurance Benefits To Employees Electing To Retire 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 5146 was by Mr. Weaver, seconded by Mr. 

Pierce. 
 
 Mr. Downes stated that this request is for an amendment to the existing policy for offering 
health coverage for retirees in order to comply with the spirit of the offer.  He stated that Tier 1 
employees can use accrued leave toward retirement and this clarifies that stipulation.  This also 
clarifies and ratifies the time of the former Cahaba Heights Fire District employees to count their 
time toward City service time, as agreed upon at the time of the annexation.  He stated that this is 
for clarity, so no one will ever second-guess or question the intent of the policy. 
 
 The Mayor called for the question. 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes    
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes    
   Mayor Curry – yes   Motion carried. 
 
 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2831 
 

Ordinance Number 2831 – An Ordinance Authorizing The Mayor And City Manager To 
Execute And Deliver A Joint Purchasing Agreement For Lawn Maintenance 
Services 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 2831 was by Mr. Weaver, seconded by Mr. 

Pierce. 
 
 Mr. Downes stated that the City is in a three-year agreement with Specialty Turf to 
maintain the City’s athletic fields.  The Board of Education would like to piggyback off of the 
City’s bid and Mr. Boone drafted an agreement to allow the Board to utilize the City’s contractor 
for their fields. 
 



City Council Minutes 
March 11, 2019 

Page 10 
 

 Mr. Pierce asked the advantage of the Board to do this. 
 
 Mr. Downes stated that they do not have to take the time of going through the bid process 
and still get a good price from a good contractor. 
 
 The Mayor called for the question. 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes    
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes    
   Mayor Curry – yes   Motion carried. 
 
 
NEW BUSINESS (UNANIMOUS CONSENT REQUESTED) 
 
 
FIRST READING (NO ACTION TO BE TAKEN AT THIS MEETING)  
 
 The Mayor stated that the following resolutions and/or ordinances will be presented at a 
public hearing at the Council’s next regular meeting on March 18, 2019, at 6:00 PM. 

 Resolution Number 5147 – A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Expend An 
Amount Not To Exceed $30,000 From The Library Fund 13 Pooled Cash For A Remote 
Locker System For Cahaba Heights And Liberty Park Residents And A Vending Machine 
For The Library’s Makerspace Area With Funding To Be Reimbursed In The Amount Of 
$20,000 By An LSTA Grant     (public hearing) 

 Ordinance Number 2832 - An Ordinance Amending Ordinance Number 2281 And 
Section 8-174 Of The Vestavia Hills Code Of Ordinances Entitled “Fire/Rescue 
Emergency Transport Service”    (public hearing) 

 
CITIZEN COMMENTS 

 
 David Harwell, 1803 Catala Road, asked about an update on the Baumhower property, as 
he noticed they are beginning construction and wanted to know what was collected on the closing 
of the property. 
 
 Mr. Downes stated that they collected $1.8 million on the property.  He stated there is a 
small amount in escrow and the City should net about $400,000 on the development.   
 
 Mr. Harwell stated that he thought the property would be more level with Montgomery 
Highway. 
 
 Mr. Downes explained that, on the City’s side, it is fairly level but the development side 
will be below the Wald Park grade. 
 
 Donald Harwell, 1357 Willoughby Road, asked about the leasing of vehicles. 
 



City Council Minutes 
March 11, 2019 

Page 11 
 

 Mr. Downes stated City vehicle leases are rent-to-own and the City owns them at the end 
of the lease. 
 
 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
 The Mayor stated that the Council needed to enter into executive session for matters of 
commerce or trade for an estimated 30 minutes.  He opened the floor for a motion.  He stated that 
there will be no further business after the executive session. 
 
 Mrs. Cook asked Mr. Boone if this was a valid reason to enter into executive session, and 
Mr. Boone said it was. 
 
MOTION Motion to enter into executive session for matters of commerce or trade for an 

estimated 30 minutes was by Mrs. Cook and second was by Mr. Weaver 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes    
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes    
   Mayor Curry – yes   Motion carried. 
 
 The Council entered into executive session at 6:55 PM.  At 7:19 PM, the Council entered 
the Council Chamber and exited executive session.  The Mayor called the meeting back to order. 
 
 At 7:20 PM, Mrs. Cook made a motion to adjourn.  The meeting adjourned at 7:20 PM. 
 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



City Council Work Session Minutes 
Page 1 

 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

MINUTES 
 

WORK SESSION 
 

MARCH 18, 2019 
 

The City Council of Vestavia Hills met in a regular scheduled work session on this 
in the Executive Conference Room at 5:00 PM, following posting/publication as required 
by Alabama law.  The Clerk checked the roll with the following: 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:   Mayor Ashley C. Curry 

Kimberly Cook, Councilor 
      Paul J. Head, Councilor 
      Rusty Weaver, Mayor Pro-Tem 
 
MEMBERS ABSENT:   George Pierce, Councilor 
 
OTHER OFFICIALS PRESENT:  Jeff Downes, City Manager  
      Wendy Dickerson, Deputy City Clerk 
      Brian Davis, Public Services Director 

Marvin Green, Fire Chief 
Cinnamon McCulley, Communications Specialist 
Jason Hardin, Police Captain 
Christopher Brady, City Engineer 
Lori Beth Kearley, Sr. Civil Engineer 
Shane Ware, Police Lieutenant 
Umang Patel, Court Director 

 
 The Mayor called the work session to order.   
 
 

INCENTIVE AGREEMENT – SERRA AUTOMOTIVE GROUP 
 
 Mr. Downes introduced Alton Parker, attorney for Serra Automotive and gave a 
brief history of the background of this property operating as an automobile dealership. 
 
 Mr. Parker stated that he represents Anthony Serra, the owner of the property. His 
client is requesting a revenue-sharing agreement in anticipation of the reopening of the 
dealership on Montgomery Highway.  He stated that the dealership has engaged in 
significant engineering planning and redevelopment in order to exchange some floodplain 
area for a rise in the parking lot to avoid the flood events that have plagued the property in 



City Council Work Session Minutes 
Page 2 

 

the past.  He stated that Mr. Serra plans to open a high-end used car dealership on the 
property, complete with automobile and collision repair.  He gave figures as to the 
estimated amount of sales for the property.  He indicated that the Serra name is well known 
in the Birmingham areas for the sale of vehicles and feels as if this will be a good dealership 
with the renovations made.   
 
 Discussion ensued concerning the previous incentive agreement of 2008, 
management issues with past dealerships, the impact of the recession, incentivizing 
redevelopment versus development that has already progressed, the projected revenue. 
 
 Mr. Parker stated that his client’s remediation efforts began before this request to 
show a true commitment to the property.  He stated his client’s purpose was to “get this to 
be a productive piece of property.” He asked that the Council not punish his client for 
simply taking the steps out of order.  He stated he feels this financial assistance from the 
City will enhance both entities. 
 
 Mrs. Cook suggested Mr. Serra consider acquiring additional property in the area, 
to create more green-space, mitigate future flooding and improve the appearance of the 
Highway 31 corridor.  She suggested this would be an activity that has not already occurred 
and this would make a stronger argument for an incentive agreement. Mr. Parker stated the 
adjacent areas are too expensive. 
 
 There being no further business, the work session adjourned at 5:50 PM. 
 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



City Council Minutes 
March 18, 2019 

Page 1 
 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

MINUTES 
 

MARCH 18, 2019 
 

The City Council of Vestavia Hills met in regular session on this date at 6:00 PM, 
following publication and posting pursuant to Alabama law.  Mayor Curry called the meeting to 
order and the City Clerk called the roll with the following: 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:    Mayor Ashley C. Curry  

Rusty Weaver, Mayor Pro-Tem 
      Kimberly Cook, Councilor  

Paul Head, Councilor 
 
MEMBERS ABSENT:   George Pierce, Councilor 
 
OTHER OFFICIALS PRESENT:  Jeff Downes, City Manager 
      Patrick H. Boone, City Attorney 
      Rebecca Leavings, City Clerk 
      Melvin Turner, Finance Director 
      Dan Rary, Police Chief 
      Jason Hardin, Police Captain 
      Marvin Green, Fire Chief 
      Christopher Brady 
 

Jim Cartlege, Vestavia Hills Chaplain, led the invocation followed by the Pledge of 
Allegiance. 
 
 

ANNOUNCEMENTS, GUEST RECOGNITION  
 

 Mrs. Cook welcomed Sandra Cleveland and Scott Perry who were in attendance 
representing the Chamber of Commerce.   

 Mrs. Cook stated that the City Council will begin receiving applications for an upcoming 
vacancy on the Vestavia Hills Board of Education.  Deadline for application is April 8 at 
5 PM.  Applications may be obtained online and interviews will be held on April 10 and 
16, at times to be determined. 

 Mr. Weaver welcomed members of Leadership Vestavia Hills who were in attendance. 
 Mr. Head announced a Parks and Recreation Board meeting tomorrow, beginning at 7 

AM in Executive Conference Room. 
 The Mayor welcomed David Wheeler, Alabama State Representative, District 47, to 

tonight’s meeting 



City Council Minutes 
March 18, 2019 

Page 2 
 

 
 

CERTIFICATE OF APPRECIATION – WILLIAM CLARK 
 
 The Mayor announced that the City teamed together with the Board of Education to 
present a Certificate of Recognition honoring William Clark, the first school superintendent when 
the school system formed in 1970   The Mayor stated that Mr. Clark passed away last year and 
this tribute was presented to his family at the last Board meeting.  He asked Mr. Boone to share 
some information of the contributions made by Mr. Clark during his years as superintendent of 
the school system. 
 
 Mr. Boone gave a historical background of the formation of the City’s Board of Education 
and how hard Bill Clark had to work to get the new Vestavia Hills school system off the ground.  
He had only three small facilities and Jefferson County wanted tuition for graduating students and 
to allow 2500 students classroom space.  Interest rates were over 20% and a desegregation case 
was filed immediately.  He explained how Bill Clark brought the City together to give this Board 
of Education a good foundation on which to grow.  This foundation has been the cornerstone of 
one of the most coveted school systems in the State of Alabama. 
 
 The Mayor stated it was a moving event to present this to his family. 
 
 

PROCLAMATION – AUTISM UNDERSTANDING AND ACCEPTANCE MONTH 
 
 The Mayor presented a proclamation designating April, 2019, as Autism Understanding 
and Acceptance Month.  Mr. Downes read the proclamation and the Mayor presented it to Krista 
Martin, Molly Clay and Grace Landram; members of Alpha Xi Delta, Theta Phi Chapter from 
UAB. 
 
 

PROCLAMATION – FREEDOM FROM ADDICTION DAY 
 
 The Mayor presented a proclamation designating March 18, 2019, as Freedom From 
Addiction Day.  Mr. Downes read the proclamation and the Mayor presented it to the Freedom 
From Addiction Coalition Advisory Board:  Alex Briggs, Dr. Michael Chandler, Jennifer Crook, 
Rachel Patterson and Elizabeth Stewart.  The Mayor announced the upcoming breakfast to be 
held on April 7, at Vestavia Hills UMC, beginning at 7 AM. 
 
 

CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
 

 Mr. Downes shared an analysis of the new gas tax and what it could mean for the City.  
He stated this means an increase of approximately $244,000 per year to be dedicated to 
improving roadways in the City.  He stated the new tax will be phased in over a six-year 
period.  Mr. Downes revisited the City’s capital plan and the commitment to pave 7.7 
miles of roadway per year to keep up with a 20-year resurfacing plan at an estimated cost 



City Council Minutes 
March 18, 2019 

Page 3 
 

of $847,000 per year.  He stated that the City committed to meeting this goal of 7.7 miles 
by the year 2021.  He presented a spreadsheet of proposed incremental budgeting which 
brings the City to the 7.7 miles annually leaving the fiscal year 2022 at 7.7 miles with the 
newly acquired $244,000 additional dollars helping to decrease the obligation by about 
$48,000. 

 
 

COUNCILOR REPORTS 
 

 Mrs. Cook thanked State Sen. Jabo Waggoner and Rep. David Faulkner for voting in favor 
of the new gas tax. 

 Mrs. Cook reported on the Board of Education and made the following notes:  approved 
a contract to purchase property adjacent to Dolly Ridge Elementary for construction of a 
parking lot at a cost of $2.8 million; announced that Meredith Hanson will become the 
new Director of Personnel Service.  She was the former principal at Pizitz Middle School, 
which will create a vacancy there.  The Board voted to extend Dr. Freeman’s contract for 
an additional year, with commendations for his work to date.  Dr. Freeman brought some 
personnel transfers to the Board in anticipation of the transitions that will occur in the 
upcoming school year.   

 Mrs. Cook announced Help the Hills Coalition meeting to be held on Thursday, March 
21, noon, in the Council Chambers. 

 The Mayor stated that Vestavia Hills Baptist Church recently honored Dennis Anderson.  
He stated that he has always been active and was one of the founders of Leadership 
Vestavia Hills along with an administrator at Vestavia Hills Baptist. 

 Mr. Weaver stated that the Planning and Zoning Commission had their regular meeting 
last Thursday with several requests that will soon be moving forward to Council. 

 
 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
 The minutes of the following meeting was presented for approval:  February 25, 2019 
(Regular Meeting). 
 
MOTION Motion to dispense with the reading of the minutes of the February 25, 2019 

(Regular Meeting) and approve them as presented was by Mr. Weaver and second 
by Mrs. Cook.    Roll call vote as follows: 

   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes    
   Mr. Weaver – yes   Mayor Curry – yes 
        Motion carried. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



City Council Minutes 
March 18, 2019 

Page 4 
 

OLD BUSINESS 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5147 
 

Resolution Number 5147 – A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Expend An 
Amount Not To Exceed $30,000 From The Library Fund 13 Pooled Cash For 
A Remote Locker System For Cahaba Heights And Liberty Park Residents 
And A Vending Machine For The Library’s Makerspace Area With Funding 
To Be Reimbursed In The Amount Of $20,000 By An LSTA Grant     (public 
hearing) 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 5147 was by Mr. Cook seconded by Mr. 

Weaver. 
 
 Daniel Tackett, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, explained the LSTA grant in the 
amount of $20,000 to fund a remote locker system to be placed in the New Merkel House and a 
vending machine in the Library’s Makerspace area for creative materials consisting of art supplies 
or digital technology. 
 
 Mr. Downes stated that the match would be through Fund 13, the Library’s pooled cash. 
 
 Mrs. Cook stated she’s happy to see the Library offering more access to the remote areas 
of Vestavia Hills, including Liberty Park and Cahaba Heights. 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one further to address 
the Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing and called for the question. 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes    
   Mr. Weaver – yes   Mayor Curry – yes 
        Motion carried. 
 
 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2832 
 

Ordinance Number 2832 - An Ordinance Amending Ordinance Number 2281 And Section 
8-174 Of The Vestavia Hills Code Of Ordinances Entitled “Fire/Rescue 
Emergency Transport Service”    (public hearing) 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 2832 was by Mr. Weaver, seconded by Mr. 

Head. 
 
 Mr. Downes stated that this amends the current Ordinance along with the City Code 
related to reimbursements for medical transport with detailed transport fees which needs periodic 
updating.  This adjustment follows the review and recommendation of a consultant and amends 
the rates consistent with major insurers. 
 



City Council Minutes 
March 18, 2019 

Page 5 
 

 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one further to address 
the Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing and called for the question. 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes    
   Mr. Weaver – yes   Mayor Curry – yes 
        Motion carried. 
 
 
 
NEW BUSINESS  
 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2834 
 

Ordinance Number 2834 – An Ordinance Authorizing The Mayor And City Manager To 
Execute And Deliver A Memorandum Of Understanding With The Red 
Mountain Greenway And Recreation Area Commission For A Conceptual 
Plan And Estimated Cost Of A Rifle And Pistol Range For The Exclusive Use 
Of The Vestavia Hills Police Department And The Red Mountain Park Police 
Department 

 
 The Mayor gave a brief background and then recused himself from consideration of this 
Resolution because he is a voting member of the Red Mountain Park Board.  He then passed the 
gavel to Mayor Pro-Tem Weaver. 
 
 Chief Rary stated that the City’s Police Department has never had a shooting range.  He 
stated that about five years ago, the VHPD entered into an agreement in Hoover to allow training 
and qualifying for a total of five weeks.  This time was spread throughout each year.  They were 
later approached by the Red Mountain Park PD to construct and share a shooting facility to be 
shared by the VHPD, the RMPD and one other municipal police department.  He stated that a 
portion of the park is public; a section is closed to the public and is already a small shooting 
facility for the RMPD.  This request would be to fund a feasibility study to construct a state-of-
the-art facility to allow shooting of any type of weapon used by these three police departments.  
He stated that he has budgeted funds to cover the expense so there is no additional funding request. 
 
 Mr. Weaver stated the range will not be open to the public and will not affect the public’s 
portion of the park. 
 
 The Chief stated it is separated by about a mile from the public park and is separated by 
fencing and other barriers. 
 
 Discussion ensued regarding fencing and barriers to keep civilians from trespassing or 
accidently entering the range. Chief Rary stated the approval of the City Council would be 
required prior to proceeding any further than the study to determine the effect this might have on 
noise in the park and use of the park by guests. 
 
MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 2834 was by Mr. Head, seconded by Mrs. 

Cook. 



City Council Minutes 
March 18, 2019 

Page 6 
 

 
 There being no one further to address the Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing 
and called for the question. 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes    
   Mr. Weaver – yes    Motion carried. 
 
 Mr. Weaver passed the gavel back to the Mayor. 
 

NEW BUSINESS (UNANIMOUS CONSENT REQUESTED) 
 
 
FIRST READING (NO ACTION TO BE TAKEN AT THIS MEETING)  
 
 The Mayor stated that the following resolutions and/or ordinances will be presented at a 
public hearing at the Council’s next regular meeting on April 8, 2019, at 6:00 PM. 

 Resolution Number 5148 – A Resolution Amending Resolution Number 5073 Dedicating 
Certain Streets In Liberty Park To The City Of Vestavia Hills, Alabama Pursuant To An 
Agreement For Maintenance And Repair   (public hearing) 

 Ordinance Number 2833 – Rezoning – 4557 Pine Tree Circle; Lot 14, Topfield 
Subdivision; Rezoning From Vestavia Hills B-1 (Neighborhood Business District) To 
Vestavia Hills B-1 (Neighborhood Business District) With A Revised Site Plan  (public 
hearing) 

CITIZEN COMMENTS 
 
 None. 
 
 
 At 6:50 PM, Mr. Weaver made a motion to adjourn.  The meeting adjourned at 6:51 PM. 
 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 









•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•



•

•

•

•

•





•

•

•





•

•

•

•

•

•





•

•

•

•

•











•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•





Resolution Number 5148 
Page 1 

 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5148 
 

A RESOLUTION AMENDING RESOLUTION NUMBER 5073 
DEDICATING CERTAIN STREETS IN LIBERTY PARK TO THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA PURSUANT TO AN AGREEMENT FOR 
MAINTENANCE AND REPAIR 

 
 WHEREAS, on April 15, 1985, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills approved 

and adopted Ordinance Number 751, which in substance, and in very general terms, provides that 

an acceptance of a dedication can only be accomplished by the approval by the City Council of a 

formal resolution adopted at a regularly scheduled meeting or a special meeting called for that 

specific purpose and that the developer who offers dedication of land for public streets and roads 

must execute and deliver an agreement guarantying that all improvements for construction of 

public streets and roads will meet city requirements; and 

 
 WHEREAS, Ordinance Number 751 provides, among other things as follows: 
 

“The City shall not accept the dedication until such time as every lot 
in the subdivision as shown on the plat has been developed with the 
construction of a home or other building;” and 
 

 WHEREAS, on September 30, 1992, the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama (“City”) and 

Liberty Park Joint Venture (“LPJV”) entered into an Annexation Agreement which provides in 

Section 9 on Page 18 of said agreement as follows: 

“9.1.  LPJV agrees to pay the cost of the installation of all fireplugs 
required by state or municipal regulations for the Development.  In 
addition, LPJV agrees to pay the cost of the first three (3) years 
rental, at standard rental charges, on such fireplugs. 
9.2.  The City will not be required to provide landscaping 
maintenance to any intensely landscaped areas of the Development 
located on public rights-of-way.  The City will grant LPJV such 
access and easements to the public rights-of-way necessary to 
landscape and maintain any such public rights-of-way. 
9.3.  LPJV agrees to install at its sole expense any and all initial 
street lighting required by state or municipal regulations for the 
Development at the time of the initial development of the 
Development, and LPJV shall have the right to install, at its expense, 
any additional or decorative lighting LPJV deems appropriate in the 
Development;” and  
 



Resolution Number 5148 
Page 2 

 

 WHEREAS, On October 7, 1992, the Legislature of the State of Alabama enacted Act 

Number 92-708, a local law, which annexed the Liberty Park property to the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama; and 

 WHEREAS, the Liberty Park property was not fully and completely developed at the time 

of its annexation to the City and 

 WHEREAS, the streets and roadways were not offered for dedication by LPJV or accepted 

by the City; and 

 WHEREAS, on May 19, 1994, a lawsuit was filed in the Civil Division of the Circuit 

Court of Jefferson County, Alabama, that challenged the validity of the annexation; and 

 WHEREAS, on January 13, 1995, the Supreme Court of Alabama decided the case of The 

City of Birmingham, et al v. City of Vestavia Hills, 654 So 2d.532(1995) and held that the 

annexation is valid and legally binding; and 

 WHEREAS, LPJV has offered to the City dedication of certain streets and roadways on 

and in the Liberty Park property subject to the terms, provisions and conditions of an agreement 

by and between the City and LPJV regarding the future responsibilities of repair and maintenance 

of said streets, roadways and rights-of-way.  Said streets, roadways and rights-of-way are detailed 

in the attached Exhibit A which is incorporated into this Resolution Number 5073 by reference as 

though set out fully herein; and 

 WHEREAS, the City and LPJV have negotiated an amendment to the Annexation 

Agreement regarding the legal responsibility for the future maintenance and repair of the streets, 

roadways and rights-of-way offered for dedication by LPJV; and 

 WHEREAS, on July 23, 2018, the City Council adopted and approved Resolution Number 

5073 to dedicate certain roadways located in Liberty Park with the anticipation that more would 

later be dedicated; and 

WHEREAS, certain additional roadways were determined to be offered for dedication 

which are detailed in Exhibit A attached to and incorporated into this Resolution Number 5148 as 

though written fully therein; and 

 WHEREAS, the City finds and determines that the acceptance of the offer of dedication 

of certain additional streets, roadways and rights-of-way as detailed in Exhibit A in and on the 

Liberty Park property by LPJV subject to the terms, provisions and conditions of the annexation 

agreement detailed in Resolution Number 5073 which will provide for the safety, preserve the 



Resolution Number 5148 
Page 3 

 

health, promote the prosperity and improve the morals, order, comfort and convenience of the 

inhabitants of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 

OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. All streets, roadways and rights-of-way including those portions of Liberty Parkway and 

Urban Center Parkway as described in the attached Exhibit A are hereby dedicated subject 

to the terms, provisions and conditions of the annexation agreement detailed in Resolution 

Number 5073; and 

2. This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon adoption and approval. 

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 8th day of April, 2019. 
 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Lake Parkway Dedication Sheet 1.dgn 9/18/2018 12:36:39 PM

Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5148



Lake Parkway Dedication Sheet 2.dgn 9/18/2018 1:49:22 PM

Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5148



LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
LAKE PARKWAY ROADWAY DEDICATION 

 

Being an existing private road situated in Section 4 and Section 5, all in Township 18 South, 
Range 1 West, Jefferson County, Alabama, being more particularly described as follows: 
 
All of that private road known as Lake Parkway located within the municipal limits of the City 
of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, beginning from the end of the traffic circle of previously dedicated 
Lake Parkway right-of-way at the intersection of  Old Overton Club Road (a private road) and 
Lake Colony Way (a private road) as shown and described in City of Vestavia Hills Resolution 
Number 5073; from the end of said traffic circle and continuing generally in an Easterly 
direction along Lake Parkway to the Point of Ending at the Easterly side of the intersection of 
Vestlake Ridge Drive (a private road) and Vestlake Cove Drive (a private road).  

Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5148



UrbanCenterParkwayDedication.dgn 9/18/2018 2:06:00 PM

Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5148



 
 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
THE URBAN CENTER PARKWAY DEDICATION 

 

Being an existing private road situated in the West 1/2 of Section 12, Township 18 South, Range 
2 West, Jefferson County, Alabama, being more particularly described as follows: 
 
All that private road known as Urban Center Parkway lying over, on, across and through Lot 7, 
The Urban Center At Liberty Park Resurvey No. 4 as recorded in Map Book 194, Page 53 in the 
Probate Office of Jefferson County, Alabama, located within the municipal limits of the City of 
Vestavia Hills, Alabama.  

 
 

Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5148



Ordinance Number 2833 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2833 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND ORIDNANCE NUMBER 2696 AND 
TO FURTHER AMEND THE ZONING ORDINANCE AND THE 
ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, 
ADOPTED SEPTEMBER 16, 1985, AND AS LAST AMENDED SO 
AS TO CHANGE THE CLASS OF DISTRICT ZONING OF 
PROPERTY FROM VESTAVIA HILLS B-1 TO VESTAVIA HILLS 
B-1 WITH A REVISED SITE PLAN 
 
BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

as follows:  That Ordinance Number 2696 and the Zoning Ordinance and Zoning Map of 

the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, adopted September 16, 1985, and as last amended so 

as to change the class of district zoning of the following described property from Vestavia 

Hills B-1 (neighborhood business district) to Vestavia Hills B-1 (neighborhood business 

district) with a revised site plan:  

4557 Pine Tree Circle 
Lot 14, Topfield Subdivision 

Seedcorn LLC, Owner(s) 
 

 BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED that said zoning be contingent upon the following 

conditions: 

1. Approval to be developed substantially as the site plan presented;  

2. Building height limited to two (2) stories; 

3. Buildings to be designed in a residential style; 

4. Developers to construct a sidewalk along frontage of lots or contribute to the 

City’s Sidewalk Fund an amount to be determined by the City Engineer based 

upon linear frontage and the cost of said sidewalk;  

5. Private clubs, convenience stores and fast food restaurants are prohibited;  

6. Opaque landscaping must be installed along the western property line. 

 
APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 8th day of April, 2019. 

 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor  



Ordinance Number 2833 
Page 2 

 

 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2833 is a true and correct 
copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Vestavia 
Hills on the 8th day of March, 2019 as same appears in the official records of said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills City Hall, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, New Merkle 
House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day of ______________, 
2019. 
 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 

 
 



Ordinance Number 2833 
Page 3 

 

 



1

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

Date:     FEBRUARY 14, 2019

CASE: P-0219-03

REQUESTED ACTION: Rezoning Vestavia Hills B-1 to Vestavia Hills B-1 with 
Revised Site Plan.

ADDRESS/LOCATION: 4557 Pine Tree Circle 

APPLICANT/OWNER: Seed Corn, LLC

REPRESENTING AGENT: Wesley Cline

GENERAL DISCUSSION: Applicant is seeking a site plan amendment for 4557
Pine Tree Circle. This property and the adjoining property were originally rezoned 
from R-1 to B-1 in March, 2017 (Ordinance Number 2696) and conditioned on the 
site plan as presented at that time. This revised site plan will include one proposed 
building. The setbacks for this property will be 20’ in the front, 30’ in the rear and 10’
on the sides.

STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION:

1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 
subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.   

City Planner Recommendation:  Building to be designed in a residential
style and compatible with other new construction in the Blue Lake area

2. City Engineer Review:  I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request. 

3. City Fire Marshal Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no 
issues with this request. 

4. Building Safety Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request. 

MOTION Mr. Weaver made a motion to recommend a site plan amendment for 4557 Pine 
Tree Circle with the following conditions:

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2833



2

1. Approval based on site plan presented;
2. Building height limited to two (2) stories;
3. Buildings to be developed in a residential style;
4. Developers to construct a sidewalk along frontage 

of lots or contribute to the City’s Sidewalk Fund in 
an amount to be determined by the City Engineer 
based upon linear frontage and the cost of said 
sidewalk;

5. Private clubs, convenience stores, and fast food 
restaurants are prohibited;

6. Opaque landscaping must be installed along the 
western property line. 

Second was by Mr. Romeo. Motion was carried on a roll call; vote as follows:

Mr. Goodwin – yes Mr. Sykes – yes
Mr. Romeo – yes Mr. Larson – yes
Mr. Weaver– yes Ms. Cobb – yes 
Mrs. Barnes – yes
Motion carried.

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2833



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2833



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2833



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2833



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2833



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2833



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2833



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2833



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2833



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2833



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2833



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2833



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2833



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2833



ORDINANCE NUMBER 2843 
 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR AND CITY MANAGER 
TO EXECUTE AND DELIVER A LAND USE AGREEMENT AND ALL 
ASSOCIATED DOCUMENTS WITH NEW CINGULAR WIRELESS PCS, 
LLC FOR A STEALTH TOWER (LIGHT POLE) TO BE LOCATED AT 
THE SICARD HOLLOW ATHLETIC COMPLEX 

 
 WHEREAS, the City Manager has been approached by New Cingular Wireless PCS, LLC, 

(“Cingular”) with a request of a possible stealth tower to be disguised as a light pole on a soccer 

field at the Sicard Hollow Athletic Complex (“SHAC”); and 

 WHEREAS, construction and operation of such a tower must be approved by the City 

Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama (“City”) following recommendation of the 

Planning and Zoning Commission through a Conditional Use Approval; and 

 WHEREAS, Cingular has presented the following documents for execution conditioned 

upon successful granting of the Conditional Use by the City Council:  (1) Land Lease Agreement, 

(2) MOL’s (3) Landlord Access Letter, and (4) Payment Direction Form; and 

 WHEREAS, a copy of said documents are marked as Exhibit A and are attached to and 

incorporated into this Ordinance Number 2843 as though written fully therein; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Manager has reviewed the documents and has recommended that 

the City Council authorize he and the Mayor to execute and deliver the documents should the 

Conditional Use Approval that will come before the Council on a later date be approved; and 

 WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council feel it is in the best public interest to execute 

and deliver said documents conditioned upon successful Conditional Use Approval at a later date. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 

OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The Mayor and City Manager are hereby authorized to execute and deliver agreements 

detailed in the attached Exhibit A following successful Conditional Use Approval by the 

Council at a later date; and 

2. This Ordinance Number 2843 shall be null and void if Conditional Use Approval is not 

granted by the City Council when requested by the applicant at a later date; and 

3. This Ordinance Number 2843 shall become effective immediately upon adoption and 

approval following publication/posting as required by Alabama law. 

 



ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 8th day of April, 2019. 
 
 
 
 
 

Ashley C. Curry 
Mayor 

ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 





Land Lease Agreement 2017 

Market:  RALM 
Cell Site Number:  USID 194907 
Cell Site Name:  Liberty Park South 
Search Ring Name:      
Fixed Asset Number:  12778284 

 
LAND LEASE AGREEMENT 

 
 THIS LAND LEASE AGREEMENT (“Agreement”), dated as of the latter of the signature dates below 
(the “Effective Date”), is entered into by the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, an Alabama municipal 
corporation, having a mailing address of 1032 Montgomery Hwy, Vestavia, AL 35216-1804 (“Landlord”) and 
New Cingular Wireless PCS, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, having a mailing address of 575 
Morosgo Drive NE, Atlanta, GA 30324 (“Tenant”). 

 
BACKGROUND 

 
 Landlord owns or controls that certain plot, parcel or tract of land, as described on Exhibit 1, together 
with all rights and privileges arising in connection therewith, located on Sicard Hollow Road, in the Southeast 
Quarter of the Southwest Quarter of Section 8, Township 18 South, Range 1 West, in the County of Jefferson, 
State of Alabama (collectively, the “Property”).  Pursuant to this Agreement, Tenant will remove an existing 
light pole at the Property and replace it with a new functioning multi-carrier light pole which will support 
Tenant’s communications equipment as well as certain equipment of other telecommunications providers.  
Landlord desires to grant to Tenant the right to use a portion of the Property in accordance with this Agreement. 
 
The parties agree as follows: 
 
1. LEASE OF PREMISES.  Landlord hereby leases to Tenant a certain portion of the Property containing 
approximately one thousand (1,000) square feet including the air space above such ground space, as described 
on attached Exhibit 1, (the “Premises”), for the placement of a Communication Facility, in accordance with the 
terms of this Agreement. 
 
2. PERMITTED USE.  Following the Effective Date, with prior approval of the initial installation plans  
by Landlord,  Tenant hereby is granted use of the Premises in order to remove and replace the foundation 
together with the existing light pole on the Premises and replace the light pole with a new functioning multi-
carrier light pole (the “Pole”) 150’in height which shall support the lights on the existing light pole as of the 
Effective Date as well as Tenant’s antennas and related equipment along with additional communications 
equipment.  Tenant may use the Premises for the transmission and reception of communications signals and the 
installation, construction, maintenance, operation, repair, replacement and upgrade of communications fixtures 
and related equipment, cables, accessories and improvements, including the Pole, associated antennas, 
equipment shelters or cabinets, fencing, and any other items necessary to the successful and secure use of the 
Premises, (collectively, the “Communication Facility”), as well as the right to test, survey and review title on 
the Property; Tenant further has the right but not the obligation to add, modify and/or replace equipment in order 
to be in compliance with any current or future federal, state or local mandated application, including, but not 
limited to, emergency 911 communication services, at no additional cost to Tenant or Landlord (collectively, the 
“"Permitted Use”).  Landlord and Tenant agree that any portion of the Communication Facility that may be 
conceptually described on Exhibit 1 will not be deemed to limit Tenant’s Permitted Use.  If Exhibit 1 includes 
drawings of the initial installation of the Communication Facility, Landlord’s execution of this Agreement will 
signify Landlord’s approval of Exhibit 1.  For a period of ninety (90) days following the start of construction, 
Landlord grants Tenant, its subtenants, licensees and sublicensees, the right to use such portions of the Property 
or any of Landlord’s contiguous, adjoining or surrounding property (the “Surrounding Property”) as may 
reasonably be required during construction and installation of the Communication Facility.  Tenant will be 
responsible for safely removing the lights on the existing light pole and installing them properly on the Pole.  
Tenant will also be responsible for making any adjustment to the lights on the Pole that may be necessary to 

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2843



2 
AT&T Site:  Liberty Park South (FA# 12778284) 

Liberty Park South (FA# 12778284)  Land Lease - REVISED FINAL 

ensure the lights are properly positioned for Landlord’s use.  Tenant has the right to install and operate 
transmission cables from the equipment shelter or cabinet to the antennas, electric lines from the main feed to 
the equipment shelter or cabinet and communication lines from the Property’s main entry point to the equipment 
shelter or cabinet, install a generator and to make other improvements, alterations, upgrades or additions 
appropriate for Tenant’s Permitted Use, including the right to construct a fence around the Premises or 
equipment, install warning signs to make individuals aware of risks, install protective barriers, install any other 
control measures reasonably required by Tenant’s safety procedures or applicable law, and undertake any other 
appropriate means to secure the Premises or equipment at Tenant’s expense.  Tenant has the right to modify, 
supplement, replace, upgrade, expand the Communication Facility (including, for example, increasing the 
number of antennas or adding microwave dishes) or relocate the Communication Facility, except the Pole, 
within the Premises at any time during the Term, at Tenant’s sole cost, but with no additional rent payable.  
With prior approval from Landlord, Tenant shall have the right to relocate the Pole within the Premises at any 
time during the Term, at Tenant’s sole cost, but with no additional rent payable.  Tenant will be allowed to make 
such alterations to the Property in order to ensure that the Communication Facility complies with all applicable 
federal, state or local laws, rules or regulations. 
 
3. TERM.  

(a) The initial lease term will be five (5) years (the “Initial Term”), commencing on the Effective 
Date.  The Initial Term will terminate on the fifth (5th) anniversary of the Effective Date. 

(b) This Agreement will automatically renew for four (4) additional five (5) year term(s) (each 
additional five (5) year term shall be defined as an “Extension Term”), upon the same terms and conditions set 
forth herein unless Tenant notifies Landlord in writing of Tenant’s intention not to renew this Agreement at least 
sixty (60) days prior to the expiration of the Initial Term or the then-existing Extension Term. 

(c) Unless (i) Landlord or Tenant notifies the other in writing of its intention to terminate this 
Agreement at least six (6) months prior to the expiration of the final Extension Term, or (ii) the Agreement is 
terminated as otherwise permitted by this Agreement prior to the end of the final Extension Term, this 
Agreement shall continue in force upon the same covenants, terms and conditions for a further term of one (1) 
year, and for annual terms thereafter (“Annual Term”) until terminated by either party hereto by giving to the 
other party hereto written notice of its intention to so terminate at least six (6) months prior to the end of any 
such Annual Term.  Monthly rent during such Annual Terms shall be equal to the Rent paid for the last month of 
the final Extension Term.  If Tenant remains in possession of the Premises after the termination of this 
Agreement, then Tenant will be deemed to be occupying the Premises on a month-to-month basis (the 
“Holdover Term”), subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 

(d) The Initial Term, any Extension Terms, any Annual Terms and any Holdover Term are 
collectively referred to as the “Term.” 
 
4. RENT. 
 (a) Commencing one hundred twenty (120) days from the date Tenant receives the building permit 
and all other Governmental Approvals (defined below) required for its initial construction and installation of the 
Communication Facility (the “Rent Commencement Date”), Tenant will pay Landlord on or before the fifth 
(5th) day of each calendar month in advance, One Thousand Four Hundred and No/100 Dollars ($1,400.00) (the 
“Rent”), at the address set forth above.  In any partial month occurring after the Rent Commencement Date, the 
Rent will be prorated.  The initial Rent payment will be forwarded by Tenant to Landlord within forty-five (45) 
days after the Rent Commencement Date. 
 (b) Upon the commencement of each Extension Term, the monthly Rent will increase by fifteen 
percent (15%) over the Rent paid during the previous five (5) year term. 
 (c) All charges payable under this Agreement shall be billed by Landlord within one (1) year from 
the end of the calendar year in which the charges were incurred; any charges beyond such period shall not be 
billed by Landlord, and shall not be payable by Tenant.  The foregoing shall not apply to monthly Rent which is 
due and payable without a requirement that it be billed by Landlord.  The provisions of this subsection shall 
survive the termination or expiration of this Agreement. 
 

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2843



3 
AT&T Site:  Liberty Park South (FA# 12778284) 

Liberty Park South (FA# 12778284)  Land Lease - REVISED FINAL 

5. APPROVALS. 
 (a) Landlord agrees that Tenant’s ability to use the Premises is contingent upon the suitability of 
the Premises and Property for the Permitted Use and Tenant’s ability to obtain and maintain all governmental 
licenses, permits, approvals or other relief required of or deemed necessary or appropriate at Tenant’s sole 
discretion for its use of the Premises, including without limitation, applications for zoning variances, zoning 
ordinances, amendments, special use permits, and construction permits (collectively, the “Government 
Approvals”).  Landlord authorizes Tenant to prepare, execute and file all required applications to obtain 
Government Approvals for the Permitted Use, and agrees to reasonably assist Tenant with such applications and 
with obtaining and maintaining the Government Approvals. In addition, Tenant shall have the right to initiate 
the ordering and/or scheduling of necessary utilities. 
 (b) Tenant has the right to obtain a title report or commitment for a leasehold title policy from a 
title insurance company of its choice and to have the Property surveyed by a surveyor of its choice. 

(c) Tenant may also perform and obtain, at Tenant’s sole cost and expense, soil borings, percolation 
tests, engineering procedures, environmental investigation or other tests or reports on, over, and under the 
Property, necessary to determine if Tenant’s use of the Premises will be compatible with Tenant’s engineering 
specifications, system, design, operations or Government Approvals. 
 
6. TERMINATION.  This Agreement may be terminated, without penalty or further liability, as follows:  

(a) by either party on thirty (30) days prior written notice, if the other party remains in default 
under Section 15 of this Agreement after the applicable cure periods; 

(b) by Tenant upon written notice to Landlord, if Tenant is unable to obtain, or maintain, any 
required approval(s) or the issuance of a license or permit by any agency, board, court or other governmental 
authority necessary for the construction or operation of the Communication Facility as now or hereafter intended 
by Tenant; or if Tenant determines, in its sole discretion that the cost of or delay in obtaining or retaining the 
same is commercially unreasonable; 

(c) by Tenant, upon written notice to Landlord, if Tenant determines, in its sole discretion, due to 
the title report results or survey results, that the condition of the Premises is unsatisfactory for its intended uses;  

(d) by Tenant upon written notice to Landlord for any reason or no reason, at any time prior to 
commencement of construction by Tenant; or 

(e) by Tenant upon sixty (60) days’ prior written notice to Landlord for any reason or no reason, so 
long as Tenant pays Landlord a termination fee equal to three (3) months’ Rent, at the then-current rate, 
provided, however, that no such termination fee will be payable on account of the termination of this Agreement 
by Tenant under any termination provision contained in any other Section of this Agreement, including the 
following: Section 5 Approvals, Section 6(a) Termination, Section 6(b) Termination, Section 6(c) Termination, 
Section 6(d) Termination, Section 11(d) Environmental, Section 18 Condemnation or Section 19 Casualty. 
 
7. INSURANCE.  During the Term, Tenant will purchase and maintain in full force and effect such 
general liability policy as Tenant may deem necessary.  Said policy of general liability insurance will at a 
minimum provide a combined single limit of One Million and No/100 Dollars ($1,000,000.00).  
Notwithstanding the foregoing, Tenant shall have the right to self-insure such general liability coverage. 
 
8. INTERFERENCE. 

(a) Prior to or concurrent with the execution of this Agreement, Landlord has provided or will 
provide Tenant with a list of radio frequency user(s) and frequencies used on the Property as of the Effective 
Date.  Tenant warrants that its use of the Premises will not interfere with those existing radio frequency uses on 
the Property, as long as the existing radio frequency user(s) operate and continue to operate within their 
respective frequencies and in accordance with all applicable laws and regulations. 

(b) Landlord will not grant, after the Effective Date, a lease, license or any other right to any third 
party, if the exercise of such grant may in any way adversely affect or interfere with the Communication 
Facility, the operations of Tenant or the rights of Tenant under this Agreement.  Landlord will notify Tenant in 
writing prior to granting any third party the right to install and operate communications equipment on the 
Property.   

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2843



4 
AT&T Site:  Liberty Park South (FA# 12778284) 

Liberty Park South (FA# 12778284)  Land Lease - REVISED FINAL 

(c) Landlord will not, nor will Landlord permit its employees, tenants, licensees, invitees, agents or 
independent contractors to interfere in any way with the Communication Facility, the operations of Tenant or 
the rights of Tenant under this Agreement.  Landlord will cause such interference to cease within twenty-four 
(24) hours after receipt of notice of interference from Tenant.  In the event any such interference does not cease 
within the aforementioned cure period, Landlord shall cease all operations which are suspected of causing 
interference (except for intermittent testing to determine the cause of such interference) until the interference has 
been corrected. 

(d) For the purposes of this Agreement, “interference” may include, but is not limited to, any use on 
the Property or Surrounding Property that causes electronic or physical obstruction with, or degradation of, the 
communications signals from the Communication Facility.  

 
9. INDEMNIFICATION.  
 (a) Tenant agrees to indemnify, defend and hold Landlord harmless from and against any and all 
injury, loss, damage or liability , costs or expenses in connection with a third party claim (including reasonable 
attorneys’ fees and court costs) arising directly from the installation, use, maintenance, repair or removal of the 
Communication Facility or Tenant’s breach of any provision of this Agreement, except to the extent attributable 
to the negligent or intentional act or omission of Landlord, its employees, invitees, agents or independent 
contractors. 
 (b) Landlord  (i) shall promptly provide Tenant with written notice of any claim, demand, lawsuit, 
or the like for which it seeks indemnification pursuant to this Section 99 and provide Tenant with copies of any 
demands, notices, summonses, or legal papers received in connection with such claim, demand, lawsuit, or the 
like; (ii) shall not settle any such claim, demand, lawsuit, or the like without the prior written consent of the 
Tenant; and (iii) shall fully cooperate with Tenant in the defense of the claim, demand, lawsuit, or the like.  A 
delay in notice shall not relieve Tenant of its indemnity obligation, except (1) to the extent Tenant can show it 
was prejudiced by the delay; and (2) Tenant shall not be liable for any settlement or litigation expenses incurred 
before the time when notice is given. 
 
10. WARRANTIES. 
 (a) Each of Tenant and Landlord (to the extent not a natural person) each acknowledge and 
represent that it is duly organized, validly existing and in good standing and has the right, power, and authority 
or capacity, as applicable, to enter into this Agreement and bind itself hereto through the party or individual set 
forth as signatory for the party below. 
 (b) Landlord represents, warrants and agrees that: (i) Landlord solely owns the Property as a legal 
lot in fee simple, or controls the Property by lease or license; (ii) the Property is not and will not be encumbered 
by any liens, restrictions, mortgages, covenants, conditions, easements, leases, or any other agreements of record 
or not of record, which would adversely affect Tenant’s Permitted Use and enjoyment of the Premises under this 
Agreement; (iii) Landlord grants to Tenant sole, actual, quiet and peaceful use, enjoyment and possession of the 
Premises in accordance with the terms of this Agreement without hindrance or ejection by any persons lawfully 
claiming under Landlord ; (iv) Landlord’s execution and performance of this Agreement will not violate any 
laws, ordinances, covenants or the provisions of any mortgage, lease or other agreement binding on Landlord; 
and (v) if the Property is or becomes encumbered by a deed to secure a debt, mortgage or other security interest, 
then Landlord will provide promptly to Tenant a mutually agreeable subordination, non-disturbance and 
attornment agreement executed by Landlord and the holder of such security interest. 
 
11. ENVIRONMENTAL. 
 (a) Landlord represents and warrants, except as may be identified in Exhibit 11 attached to this 
Agreement, (i) the Property, as of the Effective Date, is free of hazardous substances, including asbestos-
containing materials and lead paint, and (ii) the Property has never been subject to any contamination or 
hazardous conditions resulting in any environmental investigation, inquiry or remediation.  Landlord and Tenant 
agree that each will be responsible for compliance with any and all applicable governmental laws, rules, statutes, 
regulations, codes, ordinances, or principles of common law regulating or imposing standards of liability or 

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2843



5 
AT&T Site:  Liberty Park South (FA# 12778284) 

Liberty Park South (FA# 12778284)  Land Lease - REVISED FINAL 

standards of conduct with regard to protection of the environment or worker health and safety, as may now or at 
any time hereafter be in effect, to the extent such apply to that party’s activity conducted in or on the Property. 

(b) In the event Tenant becomes aware of any hazardous materials on the Property, or any 
environmental, health or safety condition or matter relating to the Property, that, in Tenant’s sole determination, 
renders the condition of the Premises or Property unsuitable for Tenant’s use, or if Tenant believes that the 
leasing or continued leasing of the Premises would expose Tenant to undue risks of liability to a government 
agency or other third party, then Tenant will have the right, in addition to any other rights it may have at law or 
in equity, to terminate this Agreement upon written notice to Landlord. 

 
12. ACCESS.  At all times throughout the Term of this Agreement, and at no additional charge to Tenant, 
Tenant and its employees, agents, and subcontractors, will have twenty-four (24) hour per day, seven (7) day per 
week pedestrian and vehicular access (“Access”) to and over the Property, from an open and improved public 
road to the Premises, for the installation, maintenance and operation of the Communication Facility and any 
utilities serving the Premises.  As may be described more fully in Exhibit 1, Landlord grants to Tenant an 
easement for such Access and Landlord agrees to provide to Tenant such codes, keys and other instruments 
necessary for such Access at no additional cost to Tenant.  Upon Tenant’s request, Landlord will execute a 
separate recordable easement evidencing this right.  Landlord shall execute a letter granting Tenant Access to 
the Property substantially in the form attached as Exhibit 12; upon Tenant’s request, Landlord shall execute 
additional letters during the Term.  If Tenant elects to utilize an Unmanned Aircraft System (“UAS”) in 
connection with its installation, construction, monitoring, site audits, inspections, maintenance, repair, 
modification, or alteration activities at the Property, Landlord hereby grants Tenant, or any UAS operator acting 
on Tenant’s behalf, express permission to fly over the applicable Property and Premises, and consents to the use 
of audio and video navigation and recording in connection with the use of the UAS.  Landlord acknowledges 
that in the event Tenant cannot obtain Access to the Premises, Tenant shall incur significant damage.  If 
Landlord fails to provide the Access granted by this Section 12, such failure shall be a default under this 
Agreement. 
 
13. REMOVAL/RESTORATION.  All portions of the Communication Facility brought onto the Property 
by Tenant will be and remain Tenant’s personal property and, at Tenant’s option, may be removed by Tenant at 
any time during or after the Term.  Landlord covenants and agrees that no part of the Communication Facility 
constructed, erected or placed on the Premises by Tenant will become, or be considered as being affixed to or a 
part of, the Property, it being the specific intention of Landlord that all improvements of every kind and nature 
constructed, erected or placed by Tenant on the Premises will be and remain the property of Tenant and may be 
removed by Tenant at any time during or after the Term.  Tenant will repair any damage to the Property 
resulting from Tenant’s removal activities.  Any portions of the Communication Facility that Tenant does not 
remove within one hundred twenty (120) days after the later of the end of the Term and cessation of Tenant’s 
operations at the Premises shall be deemed abandoned and owned by Landlord.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, 
Tenant will not be responsible for the replacement of any trees, shrubs or other vegetation. 
 
14. MAINTENANCE/UTILITIES. 
 (a) Tenant will keep and maintain the Premises in good condition, reasonable wear and tear and 
damage from the elements excepted.  Landlord will maintain and repair the Property and access thereto and all 
areas of the Premises and easements not used exclusively by Tenant, in good and tenantable condition, subject 
to reasonable wear and tear and damage from the elements, as necessary to avoid any adverse impact on 
Tenant’s ability to use the Premises for the Permitted Use under this Agreement. 

(b) Tenant will be responsible for paying on a monthly or quarterly basis all utilities charges for 
electricity, telephone service or any other utility used or consumed by Tenant on the Premises.  

(c) Landlord acknowledges that Tenant provides a communication service which requires electrical 
power to operate and must operate twenty-four (24) hours per day, seven (7) days per week.  If there is an 
interruption in electrical power for an extended period of time, in Tenant’s reasonable determination, Landlord 
agrees to allow Tenant the right to bring in a temporary source of power for the duration of the interruption.  

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2843



6 
AT&T Site:  Liberty Park South (FA# 12778284) 

Liberty Park South (FA# 12778284)  Land Lease - REVISED FINAL 

Tenant will not be responsible for interference with, interruption of or failure, beyond the reasonable control of 
Tenant, of such services to be furnished or supplied by Tenant for Landlord’s lights located on the Pole. 

(d) Tenant will have the right to install utilities, at Tenant’s expense, and to improve present 
utilities on the Property and the Premises.  Landlord hereby grants to any service company providing utility or 
similar services, including electric power and telecommunications, to Tenant an easement over the Property, 
from an open and improved public road to the Premises, and upon the Premises, as more fully described on 
Exhibit 1 as the “30’ Ingress/Egress & Utility Easement,” for the purpose of constructing, operating and 
maintaining such lines, wires, circuits, and conduits, associated equipment cabinets and such appurtenances 
thereto, as such service companies may from time to time require in order to provide such services to the 
Premises.  Upon Tenant’s or service company’s request, Landlord will execute a separate recordable easement 
evidencing this grant, at no additional cost to Tenant or the service company. 
 
15. DEFAULT AND RIGHT TO CURE. 
 (a) The following will be deemed a default by Tenant and a breach of this Agreement:  (i) non-
payment of Rent if such Rent remains unpaid for more than thirty (30) days after written notice from Landlord 
of such failure to pay; or (ii) Tenant’s failure to perform any other term or condition under this Agreement 
within forty-five (45) days after written notice from Landlord specifying the failure.  No such failure, however, 
will be deemed to exist if Tenant has commenced to cure such default within such period and provided that such 
efforts are prosecuted to completion with reasonable diligence.  Delay in curing a default will be excused if due 
to causes beyond the reasonable control of Tenant.  If Tenant remains in default beyond any applicable cure 
period, then Landlord will have the right to exercise any and all rights and remedies available to it under law and 
equity. 
 (b) The following will be deemed a default by Landlord and a breach of this Agreement:  (i) 
Landlord’s failure to provide Access to the Premises as required by Section 12 within twenty-four (24) hours 
after written notice of such failure; (ii) Landlord’s failure to cure an interference problem as required by Section 
8 within twenty-four (24) hours after written notice of such failure; or (iii) Landlord’s failure to perform any 
term, condition or breach of any warranty or covenant under this Agreement within forty-five (45) days after 
written notice from Tenant specifying the failure.  No such failure, however, will be deemed to exist if Landlord 
has commenced to cure the default within such period and provided such efforts are prosecuted to completion 
with reasonable diligence.  Delay in curing a default will be excused if due to causes beyond the reasonable 
control of Landlord.  If Landlord remains in default beyond any applicable cure period, Tenant will have any 
and all rights available to it under law and equity. 
 
16. ASSIGNMENT/SUBLEASE.  Tenant will have the right to assign this Agreement or sublease the 
Premises and its rights herein, in whole or in part, without Landlord’s consent.  Upon notification to Landlord of 
such assignment, Tenant will be relieved of all future performance, liabilities and obligations under this 
Agreement to the extent of such assignment. 
 
17. NOTICES.  All notices, requests and demands hereunder will be given by first class certified or 
registered mail, return receipt requested, or by a nationally recognized overnight courier, postage prepaid, to be 
effective when properly sent and received, refused or returned undelivered.  Notices will be addressed to the 
parties hereto as follows: 
 
If to Tenant:  New Cingular Wireless PCS, LLC 
   Attn: Network Real Estate Administration 

 Re:  Cell Site #:  USID 194907; Cell Site Name:  Liberty Park South (AL) 
   Fixed Asset #:  12778284 

 575 Morosgo Drive NE 
   Atlanta, Georgia 30324 

 
 
 

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2843



7 
AT&T Site:  Liberty Park South (FA# 12778284) 

Liberty Park South (FA# 12778284)  Land Lease - REVISED FINAL 

With a copy to:  New Cingular Wireless PCS, LLC 
 Attn.:  Legal Dept – Network Operations 
 Re:  Cell Site #:  USID 194907; Cell Site Name:  Liberty Park South (AL) 
 Fixed Asset #:  12778284 
 208 S. Akard Street 
 Dallas, TX 75202-4206 

 
 
If to Landlord:   The City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama 
   1032 Montgomery HWY 
     Vestavia, AL 35216-1804 
 
Either party hereto may change the place for the giving of notice to it by thirty (30) days’ prior written notice to 
the other party hereto as provided herein. 
 
18. CONDEMNATION.  In the event Landlord receives notification of any condemnation proceedings 
affecting the Property, Landlord will provide notice of the proceeding to Tenant within twenty-four (24) hours.  
If a condemning authority takes all of the Property, or a portion sufficient, in Tenant’s sole determination, to 
render the Premises unsuitable for Tenant, this Agreement will terminate as of the date the title vests in the 
condemning authority.  The parties will each be entitled to pursue their own separate awards in the 
condemnation proceeds, which for Tenant will include, where applicable, the value of its Communication 
Facility, moving expenses, prepaid Rent, and business dislocation expenses.  Tenant will be entitled to 
reimbursement for any prepaid Rent on a pro rata basis. 
 
19. CASUALTY.  Landlord will provide notice to Tenant of any casualty or other harm affecting the 
Property within twenty-four (24) hours of the casualty or other harm.  If any part of the Communication Facility 
or the Property is damaged by casualty or other harm as to render the Premises unsuitable, in Tenant’s sole 
determination, then Tenant may terminate this Agreement by providing written notice to Landlord, which 
termination will be effective as of the date of such casualty or other harm.  Upon such termination, Tenant will 
be entitled to collect all insurance proceeds payable to Tenant on account thereof and to be reimbursed for any 
prepaid Rent on a pro rata basis.  Landlord agrees to permit Tenant to place temporary transmission and 
reception facilities on the Property, at a location approved by Landlord, but only until such time as Tenant is 
able to activate a replacement transmission facility at another location; notwithstanding the termination of this 
Agreement, such temporary facilities will be governed by all of the terms and conditions of this Agreement, 
including Rent.  If Landlord or Tenant undertakes to rebuild or restore the Premises and/or the Communication 
Facility, as applicable, Landlord agrees to permit Tenant to place temporary transmission and reception facilities 
on the Property, at a location approved by Landlord, at no additional Rent until the reconstruction of the 
Premises and/or the Communication Facility is completed.  Tenant acknowledges and agrees that Landlord shall 
have the right to disapprove of a proposed location for any such temporary facilities on the Property if Landlord, 
in its sole discretion, determines that the placement of such temporary facilities at such proposed temporary 
location would interfere with the use and operation of the Property by Landlord, or any other tenant or occupant 
thereof.  If Landlord determines not to restore the Property, and such restoration be necessary for Tenant’s use 
of the Premises and/or Communication Facility, Landlord will notify Tenant of such determination within thirty 
(30) days after the casualty or other harm.  If Landlord does not so notify Tenant and Tenant decides not to 
terminate under this Section 19, then Landlord will promptly restore any portion of the Property interfering with 
or required for Tenant’s Permitted Use of the Premises to substantially the same condition as existed before the 
casualty or other harm.  Landlord agrees that the Rent shall be abated until the Property and/or the Premises are 
rebuilt or restored, unless Tenant places temporary transmission and reception facilities on the Property. 
 
20. WAIVER OF LANDLORD’S LIENS.  Landlord waives any and all lien rights it may have, statutory or 
otherwise, concerning the Communication Facility or any portion thereof.  The Communication Facility shall be 
deemed personal property for purposes of this Agreement, regardless of whether any portion is deemed real or 

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2843



8 
AT&T Site:  Liberty Park South (FA# 12778284) 

Liberty Park South (FA# 12778284)  Land Lease - REVISED FINAL 

personal property under applicable law; Landlord consents to Tenant’s right to remove all or any portion of the 
Communication Facility from time to time in Tenant’s sole discretion and without Landlord’s consent. 
 
21. TAXES. 
 (a) Tenant and Landlord acknowledge and agree that Landlord, as a municipal corporation, is 
exempt from property taxes on Landlord’s property, and that Tenant shall be responsible for any taxes and 
assessments attributable to and levied upon Tenant’s leasehold improvements on the Premises if and as set forth 
in this Section 21.  Nothing herein shall require Tenant to pay any inheritance, franchise, income, payroll, 
excise, privilege, rent, capital stock, stamp, documentary, estate, or profit tax, or any tax of similar nature, that is 
or may be imposed upon Landlord.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, Landlord shall be responsible for timely 
payment of all taxes and assessments levied upon the lands, improvements and other property of Landlord, 
including any such taxes that may be calculated by the taxing authority using any method, including the income 
method, and all taxes and fees imposed in connection with a sale of the Property or assignment of the Rent 
payments by Landlord. 
 (b) In the event Landlord receives a notice of assessment with respect to which taxes or 
assessments are imposed on Tenant’s leasehold improvements on the Premises, Landlord shall provide Tenant 
with copies of each such notice immediately upon receipt, but in no event later than forty-five (45) days after the 
date of such notice of assessment.  If Landlord does not provide such notice or notices to Tenant in a timely 
manner and Tenant’s rights with respect to such taxes are prejudiced by the delay, Landlord shall reimburse 
Tenant for any increased costs directly resulting from the delay.  If Landlord provides a notice of assessment to 
Tenant within such time period and requests reimbursement from Tenant as set forth below, then Tenant shall 
reimburse Landlord for the tax or assessments identified on the notice of assessment on Tenant’s leasehold 
improvements, which has been paid by Landlord.  If Landlord seeks reimbursement from Tenant, Landlord 
shall, no later than sixty (60) days after Landlord’s payment of the taxes or assessments for the assessed tax 
year, provide Tenant with written notice including evidence that Landlord has timely paid same, and Landlord 
shall provide to Tenant any other documentation reasonably requested by Tenant to allow Tenant to evaluate the 
payment and to reimburse Landlord. 
 (c) For any tax amount for which Tenant is responsible under this Agreement, Tenant shall have the 
right to contest, in good faith, the validity or the amount thereof using such administrative, appellate or other 
proceedings as may be appropriate in the jurisdiction, and may defer payment of such obligations, pay same 
under protest, or take such other steps as permitted by law.  This right shall include the ability to institute any 
legal, regulatory or informal action in the name of Landlord, Tenant, or both, with respect to the valuation of the 
Premises.  Landlord shall cooperate with respect to the commencement and prosecution of any such proceedings 
and will execute any documents required therefor.  The expense of any such proceedings shall be borne by 
Tenant and any refunds or rebates secured as a result of Tenant’s action shall belong to Tenant, to the extent the 
amounts were originally paid by Tenant.  In the event Tenant notifies Landlord by the due date for assessment of 
Tenant’s intent to contest the assessment, Landlord shall not pay the assessment pending conclusion of the 
contest, unless required by applicable law. 
 (d) Landlord shall not split or cause the tax parcel on which the Premises are located to be split, 
bifurcated, separated or divided without the prior written notice of Tenant. 
 (e) Tenant shall have the right but not the obligation to pay any taxes due by Landlord hereunder if 
Landlord fails to timely do so, in addition to any other rights or remedies of Tenant.   
 (f) Any tax-related notices shall be sent to Tenant in the manner set forth in Section 17.  Promptly 
after the Effective Date, Landlord shall provide Tenant’s address to the taxing authority for the authority’s use in 
the event the authority needs to communicate with Tenant.  In the event that Tenant’s address changes by notice 
to Landlord, Landlord shall be required to provide Tenant’s new address to the taxing authority or authorities. 

(g) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Section 21, Tenant shall have no 
obligation to reimburse any tax or assessment for which the Landlord is reimbursed or rebated by a third party. 

 
22. SALE OF PROPERTY. 
 (a) Landlord may sell the Property or a portion thereof to a third party, provided:  (i) the sale is 
made subject to the terms of this Agreement; and (ii) if the sale does not include the assignment of Landlord’s 

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2843



9 
AT&T Site:  Liberty Park South (FA# 12778284) 

Liberty Park South (FA# 12778284)  Land Lease - REVISED FINAL 

full interest in this Agreement, the purchaser must agree to perform, without requiring compensation from 
Tenant or any subtenant, any obligation of Landlord under this Agreement, including Landlord’s obligation to 
cooperate with Tenant as provided hereunder.  

(b) If Landlord, at any time during the Term of this Agreement, decides to rezone or sell, subdivide 
or otherwise transfer all or any part of the Premises, or all or any part of the Property or Surrounding Property, 
to a purchaser other than Tenant, Landlord shall promptly notify Tenant in writing, and such rezoning, sale, 
subdivision or transfer shall be subject to this Agreement and Tenant’s rights hereunder.  In the event of a 
change in ownership, transfer or sale of the Property, within ten (10) days of such transfer, Landlord or its 
successor shall send the documents listed below in this Section 22(b) to Tenant.  Until Tenant receives all such 
documents, Tenant’s failure to make payments under this Agreement shall not be an event of default and Tenant 
reserves the right to hold payments due under this Agreement.  
 
  i. Old deed to Property 
  ii. New deed to Property 
  iii. Bill of Sale or Transfer 
  iv. Copy of current Tax Bill 
  v. New IRS Form W-9 
  vi.  Completed and Signed Tenant Payment Direction Form 
  vii. Full contact information for new Landlord including phone number(s) 
 
 (c) Landlord agrees not to sell, lease or use any areas of the Property or the Surrounding Property 
for the installation, operation or maintenance of other wireless communication facilities if such installation, 
operation or maintenance would interfere with Tenant’s Permitted Use or communications equipment as 
determined by radio propagation tests performed by Tenant in its sole discretion.  If the radio frequency 
propagation tests demonstrate levels of interference unacceptable to Tenant, in Tenant’s commercially 
reasonable discretion, Landlord shall be prohibited from selling, leasing or using any areas of the Property 
within an one thousand (1,000) foot radius of the Premises for purposes of any future installation, operation or 
maintenance of any other wireless communication facility or equipment. 
 (d) The provisions of this Section 22 shall in no way limit or impair the obligations of Landlord 
under this Agreement, including interference and access obligations.  
 
23. LEGAL AND PROFESSIONAL FEES.  Tenant agrees to reimburse Landlord for costs incurred by 
Landlord for professional services in connection with the negotiation of this Agreement in the amount of Five 
Thousand and No/100 Dollars ($5,000.00) (the “Legal Fees”).  The Legal Fees will be forwarded by Tenant to 
Landlord within forty-five (45) days after the execution of this Agreement. 
 
24. COLLOCATOR FEE.  In the event Tenant sublets or licenses space on the Communication Facility to 
a non-AT&T Affiliate, third-party collocator (“Collocator”), Tenant shall remit Five Hundred and No/100 
Dollars ($500.00) per month to Landlord (the “Collocator Fee”), partial periods to be prorated.  The Collocator 
Fee shall be due and payable within thirty (30) days after Tenant’s receipt of Collocator’s rental, license or 
similar payments.  Landlord acknowledges and agrees that the Collocator Fee may or may not be passed through 
as a cost to Collocator.  In the event Tenant sublets to more than one Collocator, Tenant shall be obligated to 
pay the Collocator Fee for each Collocator.  Tenant shall have no obligation for payment of the Collocator Fee 
to Landlord if no rental, license or similar payment is actually received by Tenant from Collocator.  Non-
payment of such rental, license or similar payment by Collocator shall not be an event of default under this 
Agreement.  Tenant shall have sole discretion as to whether, and on what terms, to sublease, license or otherwise 
allow occupancy of the Premises and there shall be no express or implied obligation for Tenant to do so.  
Landlord acknowledges that Landlord shall have no recourse against Tenant as a result of the failure of payment 
or other obligation by a Collocator.  Landlord will have the right to request from Tenant an annual accounting of 
the number of Collocator(s) using the Premises each year, and the Collocator Fee paid for the site (if any), to be 
provided to the Landlord on an electronic basis, provided that Landlord executes a confidentiality agreement for 
any records and/or documents deemed confidential by Tenant, such as any Collocator sublease, included in the 

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2843



10 
AT&T Site:  Liberty Park South (FA# 12778284) 

Liberty Park South (FA# 12778284)  Land Lease - REVISED FINAL 

annual report.  Landlord shall maintain the confidentiality of any and all records provided to it by Tenant which 
are not required to be made public pursuant to Applicable Laws. 
 
25. MISCELLANEOUS. 
 (a) Amendment/Waiver.  This Agreement cannot be amended, modified or revised unless done in 
writing and signed by Landlord and Tenant.  No provision may be waived except in a writing signed by both 
parties.  The failure by a party to enforce any provision of this Agreement or to require performance by the other 
party will not be construed to be a waiver, or in any way affect the right of either party to enforce such provision 
thereafter.  

(b) Memorandum/Short Form Lease.  Contemporaneously with the execution of this Agreement, 
the parties will execute a recordable Memorandum of Lease substantially in the form attached as Exhibit 26(b).  
Either party may record this Memorandum of Lease at any time during the Term, in its absolute discretion.  
Thereafter during the Term, either party will, at any time upon fifteen (15) business days’ prior written notice 
from the other, execute, acknowledge and deliver to the other a recordable Memorandum of Lease. 
 (c) Limitation of Liability.  Except for the indemnity obligations set forth in this Agreement, and 
otherwise notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreement, Tenant and Landlord each waives any 
claims that each may have against the other with respect to consequential, incidental or special damages, 
however caused, based on any theory of liability. 
 (d) Compliance with Law.  Tenant agrees to comply with all federal, state and local laws, orders, 
rules and regulations (“Laws”) applicable to Tenant’s use of the Communication Facility on the Property. 
Landlord agrees to comply with all Laws relating to Landlord’s ownership and use of the Property and any 
improvements on the Property. 
 (e) Bind and Benefit.  The terms and conditions contained in this Agreement will run with the 
Property and bind and inure to the benefit of the parties, their respective heirs, executors, administrators, 
successors and assigns. 
 (f) Entire Agreement.  This Agreement and the exhibits attached hereto, all being a part hereof, 
constitute the entire agreement of the parties hereto and will supersede all prior offers, negotiations and 
agreements with respect to the subject matter of this Agreement.  Exhibits are numbered to correspond to the 
section wherein they are first referenced.  Except as otherwise stated in this Agreement, each party shall bear its 
own fees and expenses (including the fees and expenses of its agents, brokers, representatives, attorneys, and 
accountants) incurred in connection with the negotiation, drafting, execution and performance of this Agreement 
and the transactions it contemplates. 
 (g) Governing Law.  This Agreement will be governed by the laws of the state in which the 
Premises are located, without regard to conflicts of law. 
 (h) Interpretation.  Unless otherwise specified, the following rules of construction and 
interpretation apply:  (i) captions are for convenience and reference only and in no way define or limit the 
construction of the terms and conditions hereof; (ii) use of the term “including” will be interpreted to mean 
“including but not limited to”; (iii) whenever a party’s consent is required under this Agreement, except as 
otherwise stated in the Agreement or as same may be duplicative, such consent will not be unreasonably 
withheld, conditioned or delayed; (iv) exhibits are an integral part of this Agreement and are incorporated by 
reference into this Agreement; (v) use of the terms “termination” or “expiration” are interchangeable; (vi) 
reference to a default will take into consideration any applicable notice, grace and cure periods; (vii) to the 
extent there is any issue with respect to any alleged, perceived or actual ambiguity in this Agreement, the 
ambiguity shall not be resolved on the basis of who drafted the Agreement; (viii) the singular use of words 
includes the plural where appropriate; and (ix) if any provision of this Agreement is held invalid, illegal or 
unenforceable, the remaining provisions of this Agreement shall remain in full force if the overall purpose of the 
Agreement is not rendered impossible and the original purpose, intent or consideration is not materially 
impaired. 
 (i) Affiliates.  All references to “Tenant” shall be deemed to include any Affiliate of New Cingular 
Wireless PCS, LLC using the Premises for any Permitted Use or otherwise exercising the rights of Tenant 
pursuant to this Agreement.  “Affiliate” means with respect to a party to this Agreement, any person or entity 
that (directly or indirectly) controls, is controlled by, or under common control with, that party.  “Control” of a 

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2843



11 
AT&T Site:  Liberty Park South (FA# 12778284) 

Liberty Park South (FA# 12778284)  Land Lease - REVISED FINAL 

person or entity means the power (directly or indirectly) to direct the management or policies of that person or 
entity, whether through the ownership of voting securities, by contract, by agency or otherwise. 
 (j) Survival.  Any provisions of this Agreement relating to indemnification shall survive the 
termination or expiration hereof. In addition, any terms and conditions contained in this Agreement that by their 
sense and context are intended to survive the termination or expiration of this Agreement shall so survive. 
 (k) W-9.  As a condition precedent to payment, Landlord agrees to provide Tenant with a 
completed IRS Form W-9, or its equivalent, upon execution of this Agreement and at such other times as may 
be reasonably requested by Tenant, including any change in Landlord’s name or address. 
 (l) Execution/No Option.  The submission of this Agreement to any party for examination or 
consideration does not constitute an offer, reservation of or option for the Premises based on the terms set forth 
herein.  This Agreement will become effective as a binding Agreement only upon the handwritten legal 
execution, acknowledgment and delivery hereof by Landlord and Tenant.  This Agreement may be executed in 
two (2) or more counterparts, all of which shall be considered one and the same agreement and shall become 
effective when one or more counterparts have been signed by each of the parties.  All parties need not sign the 
same counterpart. 

(m) WAIVER OF JURY TRIAL.  EACH PARTY, TO THE EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW, 
KNOWINGLY, VOLUNTARILY AND INTENTIONALLY WAIVES ITS RIGHT TO A TRIAL BY JURY 
IN ANY ACTION OR PROCEEDING UNDER ANY THEORY OF LIABILITY ARISING OUT OF OR IN 
ANY WAY CONNECTED WITH THIS AGREEMENT OR THE TRANSACTIONS IT CONTEMPLATES. 
 (n) Incidental Fees.  Unless specified in this Agreement, no unilateral fees or additional costs or 
expenses are to be applied by either party to the other party, including review of plans, structural analyses, 
consents, provision of documents or other communications between the parties. 
 (o) Further Acts.   Upon request, either party will cause to be promptly and duly taken, executed, 
acknowledged and delivered all such further acts, documents, and assurances as the other party may request 
from time to time in order to effectuate, carry out and perform all of the terms, provisions and conditions of this 
Agreement and all transactions and permitted use contemplated by this Agreement. 

 
[SIGNATURES APPEAR ON NEXT PAGE] 

 
 

 

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2843



12 
AT&T Site:  Liberty Park South (FA# 12778284) 

Liberty Park South (FA# 12778284)  Land Lease - REVISED FINAL 

 
 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Agreement to be effective as of the Effective 
Date. 
 
       “LANDLORD” 
 
       The City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama 
       an Alabama municipal corporation 
        
       By:        
       Print Name:  Ashley C. Curry  
       Its:  Mayor and City Council President 
       Date:        
 
       By:  ___________________________  
       Print Name:  Jeffrey D. Downes 
       Its:  City Manager 
       Date:  __________________________  

 
 

 “TENANT” 
 
       New Cingular Wireless PCS, LLC, 
       a Delaware limited liability company 
        
       By: AT&T Mobility Corporation 
       Its: Manager  
 
       By:        
        Print Name:       
       Its:  Area Manager 
       Date:        
 
 
 
 
 

[ACKNOWLEDGMENTS APPEAR ON NEXT PAGE] 

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2843



13 
AT&T Site:  Liberty Park South (FA# 12778284) 

Liberty Park South (FA# 12778284)  Land Lease - REVISED FINAL 

 
TENANT ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

 
STATE OF      
      
COUNTY OF      
 

 
On the _____ day of ___________________, 2019, before me personally appeared 

___________________, and acknowledged under oath that he/she is the Area Manager of AT&T Mobility 
Corporation, the Manager of New Cingular Wireless PCS, LLC, the Tenant named in the attached instrument, 
and as such was authorized to execute this instrument on behalf of the Tenant. 
 
 

        
 Notary Public:        

       My Commission Expires:      
 
 
 

LANDLORD ACKNOWLEDGMENT 
 
STATE OF      
      
COUNTY OF      
 
 
 On the _____ day of ____________, 2019, before me, personally appeared Ashley C. Curren, who 
acknowledged under oath, that he is the Mayor and City Council President for the City of Vestavia Hills, the 
Landlord named in the within instrument, and that he executed the same in his stated capacity as the voluntary 
act and deed of the Landlord for the purposes therein contained. 
 

        
 Notary Public:        

       My Commission Expires:      
 
STATE OF      
      
COUNTY OF      
 
 
 On the _____ day of ____________, 2019, before me, personally appeared Jeffrey D. Downes, who 
acknowledged under oath, that he is the City Manager for the City of Vestavia Hills, the Landlord named in the 
within instrument, and that he executed the same in his stated capacity as the voluntary act and deed of the 
Landlord for the purposes therein contained. 
 

        
 Notary Public:        

       My Commission Expires:      
 
 

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2843



AT&T Site:  Liberty Park South (FA# 12778284) 

EXHIBIT 1 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY AND PREMISES 
 

Page 1 of 6 
 

to the Land Lease Agreement dated    , 2019, by and between the City of 
Vestavia Hills, Alabama, an Alabama municipal corporation, as Landlord, and New Cingular Wireless 
PCS, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, as Tenant. 
 
The Property is legally described as follows: 
 

PARENT TRACT (BOOK LR200616, PAGE 16634) 
 

TRACT 2 DESCRIPTION: 
 
A tract of land situated in the South 1/2 of the Southwest 1/4 of Section 8 in and 

the North 1/2 of the Northwest 1/4 of Section 17, all in Township 18 South, Range 1 West, 
Jefferson County, Alabama, being more particularly described as follows: 

 
Commence at the Northwest corner of Section 17, Township 18 South, Range 1 

West and run South 00 degrees 39 minutes 29 seconds East for 849.95 feet to a point on 
the Southerly right-of-way of Sicard Hollow Road and the point of beginning of a non-
tangent curve to the right, of which the radius point lies South 38 degrees 38 minutes 59 
seconds East, a radial distance of 532.96 feet; thence run Northeasterly along said right-of-
way and said arc, through a central angle of 05 degrees 44 minutes 23 seconds, a distance 
of 53.39 feet; thence run North 57 degrees 05 minutes 24 seconds East along said right-of-
way for 59.64 feet to the point of beginning of a curve to the left, having a radius of 269.18 
feet and a central angle of 36 degrees 22 minutes 59 seconds; thence run Northeasterly 
along said right-of-way and said arc a distance of 170.93 feet; thence run North 20 degrees 
42 minutes 25 seconds East along said right-of-way for 58.43 feet to the point of beginning 
of a curve to the right, having a radius of 676.20 feet and a central angle of 07 degrees 36 
minutes 28 seconds; thence run Northeasterly along said right-of-way and said arc a 
distance of 89.79 feet to the point of beginning of the tract of land herein described; thence 
run South 40 degrees 59 minutes 25 seconds East for 369.80 feet; thence run South 15 
degrees 58 minutes 36 seconds East for 286.82 feet; thence run South 60 degrees 26 
minutes 23 seconds East for 109.14 feet; thence run North 46 degrees 40 minutes 00 
seconds East for 988.15 feet; thence run North 61 degrees 21 minutes 53 seconds East for 
583.42 feet; thence run North 45 degrees 57 minutes 26 seconds East for 1,027.52 feet to a 
point on the East line of the Southeast 1/4 of the Southwest 1/4 of said Section 8; thence 
run North 00 degrees 50 minutes 58 seconds West along the East line of said 1/4-1/4 
section for 830.48 feet to the Northeast Corner of said 1/4-1/4 section; thence run South 89 
degrees 00 minutes 04 seconds West along the North line of said 1/4-1/4 section for 
1,251.94 feet to a point on the Easterly right-of-way of Sicard Hollow Road and the point 
of beginning of a non-tangent curve to the left, of which the radius point lies South 52 
degrees 21 minutes 23 seconds East, a radial distance of 278.31 feet; thence run Southerly 
along said right-of-way and said arc, through a central angle of 43 degrees 55 minutes 15 
seconds, a distance of 213.34 feet, thence run South 06 degrees 16 minutes 37 seconds East 
along said right-of-way for 303.73 feet to the point of beginning of a curve to the right, 
having a radius of 517.47 feet and a central angle of 52 degrees 50 minutes 01 seconds; 
thence run Southerly along said right-of-way and said arc a distance of 477.17 feet; thence 
run South 46 degrees 33 minutes 24 seconds West along said right-of-way for 1,115.47  

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2843



AT&T Site:  Liberty Park South (FA# 12778284) 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY AND PREMISES 
 

Page 2 of 6 
 

 
feet to the point of beginning of a curve to the left, having a radius of 676.20 feet and a 
central angle of 18 degrees 14 minutes 32 seconds; thence run Southwesterly along said 
right-of-way and said arc a distance of 215.29 feet to the point of beginning, containing 
62.93 acres, more or less. 

 
 
The Premises are described and/or depicted as follows: 

 
50’ X 20’ LEASE AREA (AS-SURVEYED) 

 
A leased parcel being a portion of that certain tract of land as recorded in Book 

LR200616, Page 16634 in the Office of the Judge of Probate, Jefferson County, Alabama, 
lying in the Southwest 1/4, Section 8, Township 18 South, Range 1 West, said County, and 
being more particularly described as follows: 

 
Commencing at a 1/2” capped rebar found (Weygand) at the northeast corner of 

the Southeast 1/4 of the Southwest 1/4 of said Section 8; said rebar bearing N 89°03’09” E 
along the north line of said Southwest 1/4 for a distance of 1251.63 feet from a 1/2” capped 
rebar found (Weygand) on the westerly Right-of-Way line of Sicard Hollow Road and 
marking the NW corner of said certain tract; thence S 67°08’26” W a distance of 521.63 
feet to a 5/8” rebar set and the Point of Beginning; thence S 55°50’14” W for a distance of 
20.00 feet to a 5/8” rebar set; thence N 34°09’46” W for a distance of 50.00 feet to a 5/8” 
rebar set; thence N 55°50’14” E for a distance of 20.00 feet to a 5/8” rebar set; thence S 
34°09’46” E for a distance of 50.00 feet to the Point of Beginning. Said above described 
leased parcel contains 0.023 acres, more or less. 

 
 

30’ INGRESS/EGRESS & UTILITY EASEMENT (AS-SURVEYED) 
 

An easement being a portion of that certain tract of land as recorded in Book 
LR200616, Page 16634 in the Office of the Judge of Probate, Jefferson County, Alabama, 
lying in the Southwest 1/4, Section 8, Township 18 South, Range 1 West, said County, and 
being more particularly described as follows: 

 
Commencing at a 1/2” capped rebar found (Weygand) at the northeast corner of 

the Southeast 1/4 of the Southwest 1/4 of said Section 8; said rebar bearing N 89°03’09” E 
along the north line of said Southwest 1/4 for a distance of 1251.63 feet from a 1/2” capped 
rebar found (Weygand) on the westerly Right-of-Way line of Sicard Hollow Road and 
marking the NW corner of said certain tract; thence S 67°08’26” W a distance of 521.63 
feet to a 5/8” rebar set and the Point of Beginning; thence S 55°50’14” W for a distance of 
20.00 feet to a 5/8” rebar set; thence N 34°09’46” W for a distance of 50.00 feet to a 5/8” 
rebar set; thence N 55°50’14” E for a distance of 10.00 feet to the Point of Beginning of an 
Ingress/Egress and Utility Easement being 30 feet in width and lying 15 feet each side of 
the following described centerline; thence N 35°17’16” W for a distance of 42.10 feet to a 
point; thence N 78°34’53” W for a distance of 30.16 feet to a point; thence S 57°34’53” W 
for a distance of 130.76 feet to a point; thence with a curve turning to the right with a 
radius of 4.78 feet, an arc length of 6.10 feet, and having a chord bearing of S 73°51’03” E 
for a chord length of 5.70 feet to a point; thence N 32°17’15” W for a distance of 107.26  

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2843



AT&T Site:  Liberty Park South (FA# 12778284) 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY AND PREMISES 
 

Page 3 of 6 
 
 
feet to a point; thence with a curve turning to the left with a radius of 10.65 feet, an arc 
length of 10.29 feet, and having a chord bearing of N 60°31’01” W for a chord length of 
9.90 feet to a point; thence S 80°46’09” W for a distance of 35.46 feet to a point; thence S 
57°32’19” W for a distance of 173.52 feet to a point; thence S 56°46’43” W for a distance 
of 61.77 feet to a point; thence with a curve turning to the left with a radius of 167.38 feet, 
an arc length of 220.67 feet and having a chord bearing of S 19°07’06” W for a chord 
length of 205.04 feet to a point; thence S 03°38’34” E for a distance of 28.00 feet to a 
point; thence S 32°41’56” E for a distance of 112.81 feet to a point; thence S 27°12’38” W 
for a distance of 37.31 feet to a point; thence S 57°39’55” W for a distance of 303.44 feet 
to a point; thence S 32°17’31” E for a distance of 151.81 feet to a point; thence S 
57°42’29” W for a distance of 101.22 feet to a point; thence with a curve turning to the 
right with a radius of 40.00 feet, an arc length of 59.09 feet and having a chord bearing of 
S 79°58’06” E for a chord length of 53.87 feet to a point; thence N 37°38’41” W for a 
distance of 61.29 feet, more or less, to the easterly right-of-way line of Sicard Hollow 
Road and the Point of Ending. Said above described easement contains (50174.4 sq. ft.) 
1.151 acres, more or less. 

 
 
 
 
 
Notes: 
 
1. THIS EXHIBIT MAY BE REPLACED BY A LAND SURVEY AND/OR CONSTRUCTION DRAWINGS OF THE PREMISES ONCE 

RECEIVED BY TENANT. 
2. ANY SETBACK OF THE PREMISES FROM THE PROPERTY’S BOUNDARIES SHALL BE THE DISTANCE REQUIRED BY THE 

APPLICABLE GOVERNMENT AUTHORITIES. 
3. WIDTH OF ACCESS ROAD SHALL BE THE WIDTH REQUIRED BY THE APPLICABLE GOVERNMENT AUTHORITIES, 

INCLUDING POLICE AND FIRE DEPARTMENTS. 
4. THE TYPE, NUMBER AND MOUNTING POSITIONS AND LOCATIONS OF ANTENNAS AND TRANSMISSION LINES ARE 

ILLUSTRATIVE ONLY. ACTUAL TYPES, NUMBERS AND MOUNTING POSITIONS MAY VARY FROM WHAT IS SHOWN 
ABOVE.  

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2843



LIBERTY PARK SOUTH
12778284

SW 1/4, SEC. 8, T-18-S, R-1-W
JEFFERSON COUNTY, ALABAMA

R
A

W
LA

N
D

 T
O

W
E

R
 S

U
R

V
E

Y

PROJECT NO.
10-1071.2

S
M

W
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
G

ro
up

, I
nc

.
15

8 
B

us
in

es
s 

C
en

te
r 

D
riv

e
B

irm
in

gh
am

, A
la

ba
m

a 
35

24
4

P
h:

 2
05

-2
52

-6
98

5
w

w
w

.s
m

w
en

g.
co

m

F
O

R
E

S
IT

E

PARENT TRACT OVERVIEW NOT TO SCALE

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2843



LIBERTY PARK SOUTH
12778284

SW 1/4, SEC. 8, T-18-S, R-1-W
JEFFERSON COUNTY, ALABAMA

R
A

W
LA

N
D

 T
O

W
E

R
 S

U
R

V
E

Y

PROJECT NO.
10-1071.2

S
M

W
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
G

ro
up

, I
nc

.
15

8 
B

us
in

es
s 

C
en

te
r 

D
riv

e
B

irm
in

gh
am

, A
la

ba
m

a 
35

24
4

P
h:

 2
05

-2
52

-6
98

5
w

w
w

.s
m

w
en

g.
co

m

F
O

R
E

S
IT

E

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2843



LIBERTY PARK SOUTH
12778284

SW 1/4, SEC. 8, T-18-S, R-1-W
JEFFERSON COUNTY, ALABAMA

R
A

W
LA

N
D

 T
O

W
E

R
 S

U
R

V
E

Y

PROJECT NO.
10-1071.2

S
M

W
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
G

ro
up

, I
nc

.
15

8 
B

us
in

es
s 

C
en

te
r 

D
riv

e
B

irm
in

gh
am

, A
la

ba
m

a 
35

24
4

P
h:

 2
05

-2
52

-6
98

5
w

w
w

.s
m

w
en

g.
co

m

F
O

R
E

S
IT

E

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2843



AT&T Site:  Liberty Park South (FA# 12778284) 

EXHIBIT 11  
   

ENVIRONMENTAL DISCLOSURE  
 

Landlord represents and warrants that the Property, as of the Effective Date, is free of hazardous 
substances except as follows:  
 

NONE 

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2843



AT&T Site:  Liberty Park South (FA# 12778284) 

EXHIBIT 12 
 

STANDARD ACCESS LETTER 
 

[FOLLOWS ON NEXT PAGE] 

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2843



AT&T Site:  Liberty Park South (FA# 12778284) 

{This Letter Goes On Landlord's Letterhead} 
 
 
 
 
[Insert Date] 
 
Building Staff / Security Staff 
[Landlord, Lessee, Licensee] 
[Street Address] 
[City, State, Zip] 
 
Re:  Authorized Access granted to New Cingular Wireless PCS, LLC 
 
Dear Building and Security Staff, 
 
Please be advised that we have signed a lease with New Cingular Wireless, PCS, LLC (“AT&T”) 
permitting AT&T to install, operate and maintain telecommunications equipment at the property.  The 
terms of the lease grant AT&T and its representatives, employees, agents and subcontractors 
(“representatives”) 24 hour per day, 7 day per week access to the leased area. 
 
To avoid impact on telephone service during the day, AT&T representatives may be seeking access to the 
property outside of normal business hours. AT&T representatives have been instructed to keep noise 
levels at a minimum during their visit. 
 
Please grant the bearer of a copy of this letter access to the property and to leased area.  Thank you for 
your assistance. 
 
 
  
_______________________ 
Landlord Signature 

 
 
 

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2843



AT&T Site:  Liberty Park South (FA# 12778284) 

EXHIBIT 24(b) 
 

MEMORANDUM OF LEASE 
 

[FOLLOWS ON NEXT PAGE] 
 
 

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2843



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by and return to: 
Rosenberg & Clark, LLC 
400 Poydras Street, Suite 1680 
New Orleans, LA 70130 
Attn:  Staci A. Rosenberg 
(504) 620-5400 
 
Re: Cell Site #:  USID 194907 

Cell Site Name:  Liberty Park South 
 Fixed Asset #:  12778284 

State:  Alabama 
County:  Jefferson 

 
MEMORANDUM 

OF 
LEASE 

 
 This Memorandum of Lease is entered into on this   day of    , 2019, by and 
between the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, an Alabama municipal corporation, having a mailing address of 
1032 Montgomery HWY, Vestavia, AL 35216-1804 (hereinafter called “Landlord”), and New Cingular 
Wireless PCS, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, having a mailing address of 575 Morosgo Drive NE, 
Atlanta, GA 30324  (“Tenant”). 
 

1. Landlord and Tenant entered into a certain Land Lease Agreement (“Agreement”) on the     day 
of     , 2019, (the “Effective Date”) for the purpose of installing, operating 
and maintaining a communication facility and other improvements.  All of the foregoing is set forth 
in the Agreement. 

 
2. The initial lease term will be five (5) years commencing on the Effective Date, with four (4) 

successive automatic five (5) year options to renew. 
 
3. The portion of the land being leased to Tenant and associated easements are described in Exhibit 1 

annexed hereto. 
 

4. The Agreement gives Tenant a right of first refusal in the event Landlord receives a bona fide 
written offer from a third party seeking any sale, conveyance, assignment or transfer, whether in 
whole or in part, of any property interest in or related to the Premises, including without limitation 
any offer seeking an assignment or transfer of the Rent payments associated with the Agreement or 
an offer to purchase an easement with respect to the Premises. 

 
5. This Memorandum of Lease is not intended to amend or modify, and shall not be deemed or 

construed as amending or modifying, any of the terms, conditions or provisions of the Agreement, 
all of which are hereby ratified and affirmed.  In the event of a conflict between the provisions of 
this Memorandum of Lease and the provisions of the Agreement, the provisions of the Agreement 
shall control.  The Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties and their 
respective heirs, successors, and assigns, subject to the provisions of the Agreement. 

SOURCE OF TITLE: 
 
Book LR200616, Page 16634 
Office of the Judge of Probate, 
Jefferson County, Alabama 

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2843



 

2 
AT&T Site:  Liberty Park South (FA# 12778284) 

 
 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Memorandum of Lease as of the day and 
year first above written. 
 
       “LANDLORD” 
 
       The City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama 
       an Alabama municipal corporation 
        
       By:        
       Print Name:  Ashley C. Curry  
       Its:  Mayor and City Council President 
       Date:        

 
 

      By:  ___________________________  
       Print Name:  Jeffrey D. Downes 
       Its:  City Manager 
       Date:  __________________________  

 
 

 “TENANT” 
 
       New Cingular Wireless PCS, LLC, 
       a Delaware limited liability company 
        
       By: AT&T Mobility Corporation 
       Its: Manager  
 
       By:        
        Print Name:       
       Its:  Area Manager 
       Date:        
 

[ACKNOWLEDGMENTS APPEAR ON NEXT PAGE] 

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2843



 

3 
AT&T Site:  Liberty Park South (FA# 12778284) 

TENANT ACKNOWLEDGMENT 
 

STATE OF      
      
COUNTY OF      
 
 

On the _____ day of ___________________, 2019, before me personally appeared 
___________________, and acknowledged under oath that he/she is the Area Manager of AT&T Mobility 
Corporation, the Manager of New Cingular Wireless PCS, LLC, the Tenant named in the attached instrument, 
and as such was authorized to execute this instrument on behalf of the Tenant. 
 
 

        
 Notary Public:        

       My Commission Expires:      
 
 
 

LANDLORD ACKNOWLEDGMENT 
 
STATE OF      
      
COUNTY OF      
 
 
 On the _____ day of ____________, 2019, before me, personally appeared Ashley C. Curren, who 
acknowledged under oath, that he is the Mayor and City Council President for the City of Vestavia Hills, the 
Landlord named in the within instrument, and that he executed the same in his stated capacity as the voluntary 
act and deed of the Landlord for the purposes therein contained.   

 
        
 Notary Public:        

       My Commission Expires:      
 
STATE OF      
      
COUNTY OF      
 
 
 On the _____ day of ____________, 2019, before me, personally appeared Jeffrey D. Downes, who 
acknowledged under oath, that he is the City Manager for the City of Vestavia Hills, the Landlord named in the 
within instrument, and that he executed the same in his stated capacity as the voluntary act and deed of the 
Landlord for the purposes therein contained. 
 

        
 Notary Public:        

       My Commission Expires:      
 
 

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2843



 

AT&T Site:  Liberty Park South (FA# 12778284) 

EXHIBIT 1 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY AND PREMISES 
 

Page 1 of 6 
 

to the Memorandum of Lease dated     , 2019, by and between the City of 
Vestavia Hills, Alabama, an Alabama municipal corporation, as Landlord, and New Cingular Wireless PCS, 
LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, as Tenant. 
 
The Property is legally described as follows: 
 

PARENT TRACT (BOOK LR200616, PAGE 16634) 
 

TRACT 2 DESCRIPTION: 
 
A tract of land situated in the South 1/2 of the Southwest 1/4 of Section 8 in and the 

North 1/2 of the Northwest 1/4 of Section 17, all in Township 18 South, Range 1 West, Jefferson 
County, Alabama, being more particularly described as follows: 

 
Commence at the Northwest corner of Section 17, Township 18 South, Range 1 West and 

run South 00 degrees 39 minutes 29 seconds East for 849.95 feet to a point on the Southerly 
right-of-way of Sicard Hollow Road and the point of beginning of a non-tangent curve to the 
right, of which the radius point lies South 38 degrees 38 minutes 59 seconds East, a radial 
distance of 532.96 feet; thence run Northeasterly along said right-of-way and said arc, through a 
central angle of 05 degrees 44 minutes 23 seconds, a distance of 53.39 feet; thence run North 57 
degrees 05 minutes 24 seconds East along said right-of-way for 59.64 feet to the point of 
beginning of a curve to the left, having a radius of 269.18 feet and a central angle of 36 degrees 
22 minutes 59 seconds; thence run Northeasterly along said right-of-way and said arc a distance 
of 170.93 feet; thence run North 20 degrees 42 minutes 25 seconds East along said right-of-way 
for 58.43 feet to the point of beginning of a curve to the right, having a radius of 676.20 feet and a 
central angle of 07 degrees 36 minutes 28 seconds; thence run Northeasterly along said right-of-
way and said arc a distance of 89.79 feet to the point of beginning of the tract of land herein 
described; thence run South 40 degrees 59 minutes 25 seconds East for 369.80 feet; thence run 
South 15 degrees 58 minutes 36 seconds East for 286.82 feet; thence run South 60 degrees 26 
minutes 23 seconds East for 109.14 feet; thence run North 46 degrees 40 minutes 00 seconds East 
for 988.15 feet; thence run North 61 degrees 21 minutes 53 seconds East for 583.42 feet; thence 
run North 45 degrees 57 minutes 26 seconds East for 1,027.52 feet to a point on the East line of 
the Southeast 1/4 of the Southwest 1/4 of said Section 8; thence run North 00 degrees 50 minutes 
58 seconds West along the East line of said 1/4-1/4 section for 830.48 feet to the Northeast 
Corner of said 1/4-1/4 section; thence run South 89 degrees 00 minutes 04 seconds West along 
the North line of said 1/4-1/4 section for 1,251.94 feet to a point on the Easterly right-of-way of 
Sicard Hollow Road and the point of beginning of a non-tangent curve to the left, of which the 
radius point lies South 52 degrees 21 minutes 23 seconds East, a radial distance of 278.31 feet; 
thence run Southerly along said right-of-way and said arc, through a central angle of 43 degrees 
55 minutes 15 seconds, a distance of 213.34 feet, thence run South 06 degrees 16 minutes 37 
seconds East along said right-of-way for 303.73 feet to the point of beginning of a curve to the 
right, having a radius of 517.47 feet and a central angle of 52 degrees 50 minutes 01 seconds; 
thence run Southerly along said right-of-way and said arc a distance of 477.17 feet; thence run 
South 46 degrees 33 minutes 24 seconds West along said right-of-way for 1,115.47 feet to the 
point of beginning of a curve to the left, having a radius of 676.20 feet and a central angle of 18 
degrees 14 minutes 32 seconds; thence run Southwesterly along said right-of- 

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2843



 

AT&T Site:  Liberty Park South (FA# 12778284) 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY AND PREMISES 
 

Page 2 of 6 
 

 
way and said arc a distance of 215.29 feet to the point of beginning, containing 62.93 acres, more 
or less. 

 
 
The Premises are described and/or depicted as follows: 

 
50’ X 20’ LEASE AREA (AS-SURVEYED) 

 
A leased parcel being a portion of that certain tract of land as recorded in Book 

LR200616, Page 16634 in the Office of the Judge of Probate, Jefferson County, Alabama, lying 
in the Southwest 1/4, Section 8, Township 18 South, Range 1 West, said County, and being more 
particularly described as follows: 

 
Commencing at a 1/2” capped rebar found (Weygand) at the northeast corner of the 

Southeast 1/4 of the Southwest 1/4 of said Section 8; said rebar bearing N 89°03’09” E along the 
north line of said Southwest 1/4 for a distance of 1251.63 feet from a 1/2” capped rebar found 
(Weygand) on the westerly Right-of-Way line of Sicard Hollow Road and marking the NW 
corner of said certain tract; thence S 67°08’26” W a distance of 521.63 feet to a 5/8” rebar set and 
the Point of Beginning; thence S 55°50’14” W for a distance of 20.00 feet to a 5/8” rebar set; 
thence N 34°09’46” W for a distance of 50.00 feet to a 5/8” rebar set; thence N 55°50’14” E for a 
distance of 20.00 feet to a 5/8” rebar set; thence S 34°09’46” E for a distance of 50.00 feet to the 
Point of Beginning. Said above described leased parcel contains 0.023 acres, more or less. 

 
 

30’ INGRESS/EGRESS & UTILITY EASEMENT (AS-SURVEYED) 
 

An easement being a portion of that certain tract of land as recorded in Book LR200616, 
Page 16634 in the Office of the Judge of Probate, Jefferson County, Alabama, lying in the 
Southwest 1/4, Section 8, Township 18 South, Range 1 West, said County, and being more 
particularly described as follows: 

 
Commencing at a 1/2” capped rebar found (Weygand) at the northeast corner of the 

Southeast 1/4 of the Southwest 1/4 of said Section 8; said rebar bearing N 89°03’09” E along the 
north line of said Southwest 1/4 for a distance of 1251.63 feet from a 1/2” capped rebar found 
(Weygand) on the westerly Right-of-Way line of Sicard Hollow Road and marking the NW 
corner of said certain tract; thence S 67°08’26” W a distance of 521.63 feet to a 5/8” rebar set and 
the Point of Beginning; thence S 55°50’14” W for a distance of 20.00 feet to a 5/8” rebar set; 
thence N 34°09’46” W for a distance of 50.00 feet to a 5/8” rebar set; thence N 55°50’14” E for a 
distance of 10.00 feet to the Point of Beginning of an Ingress/Egress and Utility Easement being 
30 feet in width and lying 15 feet each side of the following described centerline; thence N 
35°17’16” W for a distance of 42.10 feet to a point; thence N 78°34’53” W for a distance of 
30.16 feet to a point; thence S 57°34’53” W for a distance of 130.76 feet to a point; thence with a 
curve turning to the right with a radius of 4.78 feet, an arc length of 6.10 feet, and having a chord 
bearing of S 73°51’03” E for a chord length of 5.70 feet to a point; thence N 32°17’15” W for a 
distance of 107.26 feet to a point; thence with a curve turning to the left with a radius of 10.65 
feet, an arc length of 10.29 feet, and having a chord bearing of N 60°31’01” W for a chord length 
of 9.90 feet to a point; thence S 80°46’09” W for a distance of 35.46 feet to a point; thence S  

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2843



 

AT&T Site:  Liberty Park South (FA# 12778284) 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY AND PREMISES 
 

Page 3 of 6 
 
57°32’19” W for a distance of 173.52 feet to a point; thence S 56°46’43” W for a distance of 
61.77 feet to a point; thence with a curve turning to the left with a radius of 167.38 feet, an arc 
length of 220.67 feet and having a chord bearing of S 19°07’06” W for a chord length of 205.04 
feet to a point; thence S 03°38’34” E for a distance of 28.00 feet to a point; thence S 32°41’56” E 
for a distance of 112.81 feet to a point; thence S 27°12’38” W for a distance of 37.31 feet to a 
point; thence S 57°39’55” W for a distance of 303.44 feet to a point; thence S 32°17’31” E for a 
distance of 151.81 feet to a point; thence S 57°42’29” W for a distance of 101.22 feet to a point; 
thence with a curve turning to the right with a radius of 40.00 feet, an arc length of 59.09 feet and 
having a chord bearing of S 79°58’06” E for a chord length of 53.87 feet to a point; thence N 
37°38’41” W for a distance of 61.29 feet, more or less, to the easterly right-of-way line of Sicard 
Hollow Road and the Point of Ending. Said above described easement contains (50174.4 sq. ft.) 
1.151 acres, more or less. 
 

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2843



LIBERTY PARK SOUTH
12778284

SW 1/4, SEC. 8, T-18-S, R-1-W
JEFFERSON COUNTY, ALABAMA

R
A

W
LA

N
D

 T
O

W
E

R
 S

U
R

V
E

Y

PROJECT NO.
10-1071.2

S
M

W
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
G

ro
up

, I
nc

.
15

8 
B

us
in

es
s 

C
en

te
r 

D
riv

e
B

irm
in

gh
am

, A
la

ba
m

a 
35

24
4

P
h:

 2
05

-2
52

-6
98

5
w

w
w

.s
m

w
en

g.
co

m

F
O

R
E

S
IT

E

PARENT TRACT OVERVIEW NOT TO SCALE

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2843



LIBERTY PARK SOUTH
12778284

SW 1/4, SEC. 8, T-18-S, R-1-W
JEFFERSON COUNTY, ALABAMA

R
A

W
LA

N
D

 T
O

W
E

R
 S

U
R

V
E

Y

PROJECT NO.
10-1071.2

S
M

W
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
G

ro
up

, I
nc

.
15

8 
B

us
in

es
s 

C
en

te
r 

D
riv

e
B

irm
in

gh
am

, A
la

ba
m

a 
35

24
4

P
h:

 2
05

-2
52

-6
98

5
w

w
w

.s
m

w
en

g.
co

m

F
O

R
E

S
IT

E

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2843



LIBERTY PARK SOUTH
12778284

SW 1/4, SEC. 8, T-18-S, R-1-W
JEFFERSON COUNTY, ALABAMA

R
A

W
LA

N
D

 T
O

W
E

R
 S

U
R

V
E

Y

PROJECT NO.
10-1071.2

S
M

W
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
G

ro
up

, I
nc

.
15

8 
B

us
in

es
s 

C
en

te
r 

D
riv

e
B

irm
in

gh
am

, A
la

ba
m

a 
35

24
4

P
h:

 2
05

-2
52

-6
98

5
w

w
w

.s
m

w
en

g.
co

m

F
O

R
E

S
IT

E

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2843



 

AT&T Site:  Liberty Park South (FA# 12778284) 

W-9 FORM 
 
 

[FOLLOWS ON NEXT PAGE] 
 

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2843



Form    W-9
(Rev. October 2018)
Department of the Treasury  
Internal Revenue Service 

Request for Taxpayer 
Identification Number and Certification

 Go to www.irs.gov/FormW9 for instructions and the latest information.

Give Form to the  

requester. Do not 

send to the IRS.

P
ri

n
t 

o
r 

ty
p

e
. 

S
ee

 S
p

e
c

if
ic

 I
n

s
tr

u
c

ti
o

n
s
 o

n 
p

ag
e 

3.

1  Name (as shown on your income tax return). Name is required on this line; do not leave this line blank.

2  Business name/disregarded entity name, if different from above

3  Check appropriate box for federal tax classification of the person whose name is entered on line 1. Check only one of the 
following seven boxes. 

Individual/sole proprietor or 
single-member LLC

 C Corporation S Corporation Partnership Trust/estate

Limited liability company. Enter the tax classification (C=C corporation, S=S corporation, P=Partnership)  

Note: Check the appropriate box in the line above for the tax classification of the single-member owner.  Do not check 
LLC if the LLC is classified as a single-member LLC that is disregarded from the owner unless the owner of the LLC is 
another LLC that is not disregarded from the owner for U.S. federal tax purposes. Otherwise, a single-member LLC that 
is disregarded from the owner should check the appropriate box for the tax classification of its owner.

Other (see instructions)  

4  Exemptions (codes apply only to 
certain entities, not individuals; see 
instructions on page 3):

Exempt payee code (if any)

Exemption from FATCA reporting

 code (if any)

(Applies to accounts maintained outside the U.S.)

5  Address (number, street, and apt. or suite no.) See instructions.

6  City, state, and ZIP code

Requester’s name and address (optional)

7  List account number(s) here (optional)

Part I Taxpayer Identification Number (TIN)

Enter your TIN in the appropriate box. The TIN provided must match the name given on line 1 to avoid 
backup withholding. For individuals, this is generally your social security number (SSN). However, for a 
resident alien, sole proprietor, or disregarded entity, see the instructions for Part I, later. For other 
entities, it is your employer identification number (EIN). If you do not have a number, see How to get a 
TIN, later.

Note: If the account is in more than one name, see the instructions for line 1. Also see What Name and 
Number To Give the Requester for guidelines on whose number to enter.

Social security number

– –

or
Employer identification number 

–

Part II Certification

Under penalties of perjury, I certify that:

1. The number shown on this form is my correct taxpayer identification number (or I am waiting for a number to be issued to me); and
2. I am not subject to backup withholding because: (a) I am exempt from backup withholding, or (b) I have not been notified by the Internal Revenue 

Service (IRS) that I am subject to backup withholding as a result of a failure to report all interest or dividends, or (c) the IRS has notified me that I am 
no longer subject to backup withholding; and

3. I am a U.S. citizen or other U.S. person (defined below); and

4. The FATCA code(s) entered on this form (if any) indicating that I am exempt from FATCA reporting is correct.

Certification instructions. You must cross out item 2 above if you have been notified by the IRS that you are currently subject to backup withholding because 
you have failed to report all interest and dividends on your tax return. For real estate transactions, item 2 does not apply. For mortgage interest paid, 
acquisition or abandonment of secured property, cancellation of debt, contributions to an individual retirement arrangement (IRA), and generally, payments 
other than interest and dividends, you are not required to sign the certification, but you must provide your correct TIN. See the instructions for Part II, later.

Sign 
Here

Signature of 

U.S. person Date 

General Instructions
Section references are to the Internal Revenue Code unless otherwise 
noted.

Future developments. For the latest information about developments 
related to Form W-9 and its instructions, such as legislation enacted 
after they were published, go to www.irs.gov/FormW9.

Purpose of Form
An individual or entity (Form W-9 requester) who is required to file an 
information return with the IRS must obtain your correct taxpayer 
identification number (TIN) which may be your social security number 
(SSN), individual taxpayer identification number (ITIN), adoption 
taxpayer identification number (ATIN), or employer identification number 
(EIN), to report on an information return the amount paid to you, or other 
amount reportable on an information return. Examples of information 
returns include, but are not limited to, the following.

• Form 1099-INT (interest earned or paid)

• Form 1099-DIV (dividends, including those from stocks or mutual 
funds)

• Form 1099-MISC (various types of income, prizes, awards, or gross 
proceeds)

• Form 1099-B (stock or mutual fund sales and certain other 
transactions by brokers)

• Form 1099-S (proceeds from real estate transactions)

• Form 1099-K (merchant card and third party network transactions)

• Form 1098 (home mortgage interest), 1098-E (student loan interest), 
1098-T (tuition)

• Form 1099-C (canceled debt)

• Form 1099-A (acquisition or abandonment of secured property)

Use Form W-9 only if you are a U.S. person (including a resident 
alien), to provide your correct TIN. 

If you do not return Form W-9 to the requester with a TIN, you might 
be subject to backup withholding. See What is backup withholding, 
later.

Cat. No. 10231X Form W-9 (Rev. 10-2018)

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2843



 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5150 
 
 
 A RESOLUTION APPROVING ALCOHOL LICENSE 

FOR JACQUELINS INC., D/B/A 5TH ANNUAL 
CRAWFISH BOIL EVENT; MARIA ESPERANZA 
ADAN, EXECUTIVES 

 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, approves the 

alcohol license for Jacquelins Inc., d/b/a 5th Annual Crawfish Boil Event, located at 2531 

Rocky Ridge Road, Suite 107, Vestavia Hills, Alabama, for the on-premise sale of 140 - 

Special Events Retail; Maria Esperanza Adan, executives. 

 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 8th day of April, 2019. 

 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 





Exhibit - Resolution No. 5150



Exhibit - Resolution No. 5150



Exhibit - Resolution No. 5150



Exhibit - Resolution No. 5150



Resolution Number 5151 
Page 1 

 
RESOLUTION NUMBER 5151 

 
A RESOLUTION IN SUPPORT OF HOUSE BILL NUMBER 41, 
INTRODUCED IN THE 2019 REGULAR SESSION OF THE ALABAMA 
LEGISLATURE, TO DISCOURAGE TEEN VAPING. 

 
WHEREAS, existing State law does not provide for comprehensive oversight or 

regulation of alternative nicotine products (also known as “vaping” products) or electronic nicotine 

delivery systems or retailers of any of these products; and 

WHEREAS, medical research shows nicotine use creates an increased risk of 

cardiovascular, respiratory and gastrointestinal disorders, decreased immune response, negative 

impacts on reproductive health and DNA mutation, which leads to cancer; and 

WHEREAS, children under the legal age of 19, in the City of Vestavia Hills, have 

reported, through the PRIDE survey, they are using alternative nicotine products at an alarming 

rate; and 

WHEREAS, the growth in teen use of alternative nicotine products increased 78%, 

nationally, from 2017 to 2018; and 

WHEREAS, the United States Surgeon General has declared youth vaping is now an 

epidemic; and  

WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council have reviewed House Bill 41, passed 

unanimously by the House in the 2019 Alabama Legislative Session, and feel it is in the best public 

interest to support the passage of the legislation, we join together to urge our legislators to stand 

in support of this proposed legislation. 

 NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 

OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, AS FOLLOWS:  

1. The Mayor and City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills urges the legislative delegation 

to support all efforts to pass and enact proposed House Bill 41 of the 2019 Legislative 

Session; and 

2. This Resolution Number 5151 shall be signed and a copy filed with each Representative 

and Senator representing this district; and 

3. This Resolution Number 5151 shall become effective immediately upon adoption and 

approval. 

 

 

 



Resolution Number 5151 
Page 2 

 
 

 

DONE, ORDERED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 8th day of April, 2019.  

  
  
  
  

Ashley C. Curry  
Mayor  

ATTESTED BY:  
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings  
City Clerk 



Ordinance Number 2840 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2840 
 

AN ORDINANCE GRANTING CONDITIONAL USE APPROVAL 
ON THE PROPERTY LOCATED AT 1506-1514 MONTGOMERY 
HIGHWAY; ROYAL AUTOMOTIVE, OWNERS; CONDITIONAL 
USE APPROVAL TO ALLOW LAMAR ADVERTISING TO 
DISMANTLE TWELVE BILLBOARD FACES ON SIX FREE 
STANDING STRUCTURES WITHIN THE CITY LIMITS OF THE 
CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS AND ALLOW THE ERECTION AND 
OPERATION OF AN FREE STANDING BILLBOARD 
STRUCTURE WITH TWO ELECTRONIC DIGITAL FACES – ONE 
FACE READING TO I-65 AND THE OTHER READING TO 
MONTGOMERY HIGHWAY 

 
 WHEREAS, on December 13, 2010, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, adopted and approved Ordinance Number 2331, also known as the City of 

Vestavia Hills Zoning Code; and 

 WHEREAS, Gregory L. Belcher, Royal Automotive, Inc., are owners of the 

property located at 1506-1514 Montgomery Highway zoned Vestavia Hills B-3 (business 

district); and 

 WHEREAS, Royal Automotive, Inc., has offered to lease to Lamar Advertising an 

area of the above referenced property for erection of a billboard for a period of ten years; 

and 

 WHEREAS, Tom Traylor, Lamar Advertising, presented an application for 

Conditional Use approval for the purpose of erecting a new freestanding billboard structure 

upon the property located at 1506-1514 Montgomery Highway for the purpose of digital 

advertising; and 

 WHEREAS, Lamar Advertising has indicated that said Conditional Use approval 

to be conditioned upon the dismantling and permanent removal of twelve existing billboard 

faces on six freestanding structures located in other areas within the City; and 

 WHEREAS, a copy of the application for Conditional Use approval by Lamar 

Advertising detailing the locations of the structures to be removed, the existing structures 

to remaining within the City and information concerning the new freestanding structure to 

be constructed is marked as Exhibit A, attached to and incorporated into this Ordinance 

Number 2840 as though written fully therein. 



Ordinance Number 2840 
Page 2 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 

THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. Conditional Use Approval is hereby granted for Lamar Advertising to dismantle 

and permanently remove twelve billboard faces on six existing billboard 

structures located in various areas of the City as detailed in the attached Exhibit 

A and, upon doing so, to construct and operate a single billboard structure with 

two digital faces – one face to read to I-65 northbound traffic and the other to 

read to Montgomery Highway south bound traffic; and 

2. Conditional Use approval for the new structure shall be considered null and 

void if, for any reason, the dismantle and permanent removal of the structures 

to be removed and construction of the new structure are not substantially 

completed within 12 months of the effective date of this Ordinance Number 

2840; and 

3. Should the new structure cease to exist or operate on the property for a period 

of twelve (12) consecutive months, said use shall be considered null and void 

and said structure shall be immediately removed; and 

4. This Ordinance Number 2840 shall become effective immediately upon 

adoption, approval and publishing/posting pursuant to Alabama law; and 

DONE, ORDERED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 22nd day of April, 

2019. 

 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2840 
Page 3 

 

 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2840 is a true and correct 
copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Vestavia 
Hills on the 22nd day of April, 2019 as same appears in the official records of said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Library in the Forest, Vestavia 
Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day of 
______________, 2019. 
 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2840 
Page 4 

 

 



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2840



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2840



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2840



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2840



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2840



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2840



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2840



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2840



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2840



E
xhibit A

 - O
rdinance N

o. 2840



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2840



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2840



E
xhibit A

 - O
rdinance N

o. 2840



E
xhibit A

 - O
rdinance N

o. 2840



E
xhibit A

 - O
rdinance N

o. 2840



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2840



E
xhibit A

 - O
rdinance N

o. 2840



E
xhibit A

 - O
rdinance N

o. 2840



E
xhibit A

 - O
rdinance N

o. 2840



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2840



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2840



E
xh

ib
it 

A
 - 

O
rd

in
an

ce
 N

o.
 2

84
0



E
xh

ib
it 

A
 - 

O
rd

in
an

ce
 N

o.
 2

84
0



E
xh

ib
it 

A
 - 

O
rd

in
an

ce
 N

o.
 2

84
0



E
xh

ib
it 

A
 - 

O
rd

in
an

ce
 N

o.
 2

84
0



E
xh

ib
it 

A
 - 

O
rd

in
an

ce
 N

o.
 2

84
0



E
xh

ib
it 

A
 - 

O
rd

in
an

ce
 N

o.
 2

84
0



E
xhibit A

 - O
rdinance N

o. 2840



E
xhibit A

 - O
rdinance N

o. 2840



E
xhibit A

 - O
rdinance N

o. 2840



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2840



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2840



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2840



Ordinance Number 2838 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2838 
 

AN ORDINANCE GRANTING A CONDITIONAL USE 
APPROVAL TO ALLOW OUTDOOR RECREATION AND 
PHYSICAL TRAINING 

 
 WHEREAS, on December 13, 2010 the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama approved and adopted Ordinance Number 2331 entitled the Vestavia Hills Zoning 

Code and establishing a conditional use approval for certain uses not permissible by right 

in zoning classifications; and 

 WHEREAS, on April 21, 2003, the City Council adopted and approved Ordinance 

Number 1983 to rezone the property located at 3788 Crosshaven Drive from Jefferson 

County R-3 (medium density residential) to Vestavia Hills R-4 (medium density residential 

district); and 

 WHEREAS, the property located at 3788 Crosshaven Drive; Lot 5 and the N 20’ 

of Lot 4, Block 1, Glass’ 3rd Add to New Merkle, is vacant and presently zoned Vestavia 

Hills R-4 (medium density residential district); and 

WHEREAS, on February 6, 2019, Christopher Williams on behalf of St. Stephen’s 

Episcopal Church, submitted an application to allow beekeeping with four (4) beehives to 

be placed on the property located at 3788 Crosshaven Drive; and 

 WHEREAS, Table 6 of the Vestavia Hills Zoning Code sets forth the permissible 

uses within a R-4 classification; and 

 WHEREAS, a copy of said application dated February 6, 2019 is attached and 

hereby incorporated into this Ordinance Number 2838; and 

WHEREAS, the Vestavia Hills Planning and Zoning Commission considered said 

application at their regular meeting of March 14, 2019 and recommended approval with 

the following conditions:  (1) Installation of no more than four (4) beehives as described in 

the attached application; (2) installation and maintenance of a minimum 6’ high privacy 

fence. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY 

COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 



Ordinance Number 2838 
Page 2 

 

a) Installation of no more than four (4) beehives as described in the 

attached application; 

b) Installation and maintenance of a minimum 6’ high privacy fence; and 

c) Beehives shall be registered and inspected by the State of Alabama 

pursuant to Alabama law; and  

d) Any changes to location of said beehives shall be reviewed and 

approved by the Planning and Zoning Commission;   

e) This conditional use approval is location specific and if the beekeeping 

use ceases on the premises for a period of 12 months, said conditional 

use shall be considered null and void. 

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 22nd day of April, 2019. 

 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2838 
Page 3 

 

 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as Acting City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 
hereby certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2838 is a true and 
correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Vestavia Hills on the 22nd of April, 2019 as same appears in the official records of said 
City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, 
New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day of 
______________, 2019. 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2838 
Page 4 

 

 

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2838



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2838



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2838



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2838



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2838



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2838



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2838



1

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

Date:     MARCH 14, 2019

CASE: P-0319-07

REQUESTED ACTION: Conditional Use Approval For An Installation Of Four
Beehives Surrounded by a Six Foot High Fence. 

ADDRESS/LOCATION: 3788 Crosshaven Drive

APPLICANT/OWNER: St. Stephen’s Episcopal Church

GENERAL DISCUSSION: The applicant seeks to install a beehive on a vacant lot 
across from the main church building. The hives will be registered with the Alabama 
Department of Agriculture and will be maintained in compliance with Alabama Code. 
A 6’ fence will surround the hives. The nearest living space is 200 feet away from the 
proposed property and is surrounded on three sides by properties owned by the 
church, and on the west side by the creek and a vacant lot. A site plan is attached. The
property is currently zoned R-4.

CAHABA HEIGHTS COMMUNITY PLAN: The request is consistent with the 
Community Plan and gardens are a permitted use within the zoning. 

STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION:

1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 
subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.   

City Planner Recommendation:  No recommendation

2. City Engineer Review:  I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request. 

3. City Fire Marshal Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no 
issues with this request. 

4. Building Safety Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request.

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2838



2

MOTION Mr. Gilchrist made a motion to recommend Conditional Use Approval For An 
Installation Of Four Beehives Surrounded by a Six Foot High Fence for The Property Located
At 3788 Crosshaven Drive. Second was by Mr. Weaver. Motion was carried on a roll call; vote 
as follows:

Mr. Goodwin – yes Mr. Sykes – yes
Mr. Romeo – yes Mr. Gilchrist – yes
Mr. Weaver– yes Ms. Cobb – yes 
Mr. House – yes Mrs. Barnes – yes
Motion carried.

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2838



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2838



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2838



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2838



Ordinance Number 2839 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2839 
 

AN ORDINANCE GRANTING CONDITIONAL USE APPROVAL 
FOR AUTOMOTIVE SALES, AUTOMOTIVE SERVICES – MAJOR 
AND MINOR, INCLUDING MECHANICAL AND COLLISION 
REPAIR FOR 1476 MONTGOMERY HIGHWAY 

 
 WHEREAS, on December 13, 2010, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, adopted and approved Ordinance Number 2331, also known as the City of 

Vestavia Hills Zoning Code; and 

 WHEREAS, Anthony F. and Margaret Serra are owners of the property located at 

1476 Montgomery Highway zoned Vestavia Hills B-3 (business district); and 

 WHEREAS, Alton B. Parker Jr., Spain & Gillon, LLC, attorney for the Serras, 

presented an application for Conditional Use approval for the purpose of automotive sales, 

automotive services – major and minor, including, but not limited to, mechanical and 

collision repair for the property located at 1476 Montgomery Highway pursuant to Table 

6 of the Vestavia Hills Zoning Code; and 

 WHEREAS, Mr. and Mrs. Serra, owners of the property located at 1476 

Montgomery Highway, were desirous of opening a new or used automotive dealership with 

complete automotive servicing and repair on said property; and 

 WHEREAS, on November 14, 2011, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills 

adopted and approved Ordinance Number 2373 to grant said Conditional Use for the 

property located at 1476 Montgomery Highway as requested; and 

 WHEREAS, on or about April 7, 2014, the dealership suffered severe flooding of 

Patton Creek which caused significant damage to the premises; and 

 WHEREAS, Section 13.3.3 of the Vestavia Hills Zoning Code provides that 

“When such use is abandoned or discontinued for a period of one (1) year, it shall not be 

reestablished unless authorized by the Council;” and 

 WHEREAS, Alton Parker, Spain and Gillon, LLC, attorney for the owners, 

submitted a letter dated March 3, 2015; and 

WHEREAS, on March 23, 2015, the Vestavia Hills City Council adopted and 

approved Ordinance Number 2373-A granting an 18-month extension for said dealership; 

a copy of which is marked as “Exhibit A” attached to and incorporated into this Ordinance 



Ordinance Number 2839 
Page 2 

 

Number 2373-B as though written fully therein, requesting an additional 18-month 

extension to said Conditional Use; and 

WHEREAS, on December 28, 2016, the City Council adopted and approved 

Ordinance Number 2373-B approving an additional 18-month extension on said uses of 

Automotive Sales, Automotive Services – Major and Minor, including Mechanical and 

Collision Repair beginning October 15, 2016; and 

WHEREAS, on January 17, 2019, following remedial steps to enhance and extend 

the flood elevations of the property, Alton B. Parker Jr., on behalf of Serra Automotive 

submitted a request for Conditional Use Approval for automotive sales, automotive service 

– major and minor, including mechanical and collision repair for the property located at 

1476 Montgomery Highway. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 

THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. Conditional Use Approval is hereby granted for automotive sales, automotive 

services – major and minor, including, but not limited to, mechanical and 

collision repair for property located at 1476 Montgomery Highway for an 18-

month period beginning April 22, 2019 and ending at midnight, April 21, 2020; 

and 

2. Should said such Conditional Use fail to operate on the property within the time 

period listed in Section 1 or should said Conditional Use cease to exist on the 

property for a period of twelve (12) consecutive months, said use shall be 

considered null and void; and 

3. This Ordinance Number 2839 shall become effective immediately upon 

adoption, approval and publishing/posting pursuant to Alabama law; and 

DONE, ORDERED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 22nd day of April, 

2019. 

 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
 



Ordinance Number 2839 
Page 3 

 

 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2839 is a true and correct 
copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Vestavia 
Hills on the 22nd day of April, 2019 as same appears in the official records of said 
City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Library in the Forest, Vestavia 
Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day of 
______________, 2019. 
 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2839 
Page 4 

 

 











1

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

Date:     MARCH 14, 2019

CASE: P-1011-22 A

REQUESTED ACTION Conditional Use Approval For The Intended Purpose Of 
Automotive Sales, Automotive Services – Major & Minor, Including Mechanical & 
Collision Repair. 

ADDRESS/LOCATION: 1476 Montgomery Highway

APPLICANT/OWNER: Anthony F. & Margaret Serra

GENERAL DISCUSSION: The applicants seek an extension of a Conditional Use 
for an automotive sales, and services dealership. This property has been granted a 
Conditional Use in the past through Ordinance 2373, approved in November 2011. In 
2014 there was a flood that damaged the property, which made the property unusable. 
Over next couple years extensions of the Conditional Use were granted, up until 
October 2016. Since that date the applicants have designed improvements to the 
structure and property to prevent future flood damage. A no rise study has been 
conducted in compliance with Article 3 of the Vestavia Hills Flood Damage 
Prevention Ordinance, and the applicants have obtained a building permit to raise the 
level of the site in a way that makes it productive for the retail sale of automobiles. 
The property is zoned B-3.

VESTAVIA HILLS COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: The request is consistent for 
commercial core. 

STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION:

1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 
subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.   

City Planner Recommendation:  No recommendation

2. City Engineer Review:  I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request. 

3. City Fire Marshal Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no 
issues with this request. 



2

4. Building Safety Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request. 

MOTION Mr. Gilchrist made a motion to recommend Conditional Use Approval For 
Automotive Sales, Automotive Services-Major And Minor, Including Mechanical And Collision 
Repair for The Property Located At 1476 Montgomery Hwy. Second was by Mr. Weaver.
Motion was carried on a roll call; vote as follows:

Mr. Goodwin – yes Mr. Sykes – yes
Mr. Romeo – yes Mr. Gilchrist – yes
Mr. Weaver– yes Ms. Cobb – yes 
Mr. House – yes Mrs. Barnes – yes
Motion carried.







Ordinance Number 2835 
Page 1 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2835 
  

AN ORDINANCE TO FURTHER AMEND THE ZONING 
ORDINANCE AND THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, ADOPTED SEPTEMBER 16, 1985, 
AND AS LAST AMENDED SO AS TO CHANGE THE CLASS OF 
DISTRICT ZONING OF PROPERTY FROM VESTAVIA HILLS R-
4 TO VESTAVIA HILLS R-9 
 
BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

as follows:  That the Zoning Ordinance and Zoning Map of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, adopted September 16, 1985, and as last amended so as to change the class of 

district zoning of the following described property from Vestavia Hills R-4 (medium 

density residential district) to Vestavia Hills R-9 (planned residential district):  

3984 & 3988 Natchez Drive; Lots 2 & 3, Block 1 Hermitage Forest 1st Sector 
Arthur Powell, Owner 

 
 BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that said zoning is conditioned upon the site plan 

presented. 

 
APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 22nd day of April, 2019. 

 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2835 
Page 2 

CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2835 is a true and correct 
copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Vestavia 
Hills on the 22nd day of April, 2019, as same appears in the official records of said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills City Hall, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, New Merkle 
House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day of ______________, 
2019. 
 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 
 

 











Ordinance Number 2836 
Page 1 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2836 
  

AN ORDINANCE TO FURTHER AMEND THE ZONING 
ORDINANCE AND THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, ADOPTED SEPTEMBER 16, 1985, 
AND AS LAST AMENDED SO AS TO CHANGE THE CLASS OF 
DISTRICT ZONING OF PROPERTY FROM VESTAVIA HILLS R-
4 TO VESTAVIA HILLS R-9 
 
BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

as follows:  That the Zoning Ordinance and Zoning Map of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, adopted September 16, 1985, and as last amended so as to change the class of 

district zoning of the following described property from Vestavia Hills R-4 (medium 

density residential district) to Vestavia Hills R-9 (planned residential district):  

3785 Glass Drive; Lot 29, Glass’ 3rd Add to New Merkle 
Tucker & Company, LLC, Owner(s) 

 
 BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that said zoning is conditioned upon the 

following conditions: 

1. Rezoned for detached use only; and 
2. Rezoning based upon lot layout and setbacks as presented; and  
3. Rezoning based on covenants as presented. 

 
 

APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 22nd day of April, 2019. 

 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2836 
Page 2 

 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2836 is a true and correct 
copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Vestavia 
Hills on the 22nd day of April, 2019, as same appears in the official records of said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills City Hall, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, New Merkle 
House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day of ______________, 
2019. 
 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 
 

 









Upon recording return this instrument to:

Overton Investments, LLC
3505 River Bend Road
Birmingham, Alabama 35216

This instrument was prepared by:

Michael M. Partain, Esq.
Attorney at Law
Michael M. Partain, LLC
The Kress Building
301 Nineteenth Street, Suite 501
Birmingham, Alabama 35203

DECLARATION OF COVENANTS
FOR

PRIVATE SANITARY SEWER PIPE LINE CORRIDOR

THIS DECLARATION, made this ________ day of ______________________________,
2019, by Overton Investments, LLC, an Alabama limited liability company, hereinafter referred to as 
the “Declarant”.

W I T N E S S E T H:

WHEREAS, the Declarant is the owner of Lot 8-A and Lot 29-A, according to the Resurvey of 
Lot 8 and Lot 29 of _____________, as recorded in Map Book ____, Page ____, in the Probate Office of 
Jefferson County, Alabama, said Lots being situated in the City of Vestavia Hills; and

WHEREAS, the Declarant has re-subdivided said Lot 8 and Lot 29 to reconfigure Lot 8 and Lot 
29 so as to make Lot 29 a “flag lot” (designated as “Lot 29-A”) in order to accommodate the installation 
of a private sanitary sewer lateral pipeline to serve Lot 29-A that shall connect to the boundary of the 
public right-of-way for Poe Drive as depicted on the map attached hereto as EXHIBIT A and made a part 
hereof; and

WHEREAS, Lot 8 was reconfigured as “Lot 8-A” as shown on EXHIBIT A; and

WHEREAS, as a condition of the re-subdivision of Lot 8 and Lot 29, the Declarant agreed that 
the Lot 29-A Owners and their heirs, successors, and assigns shall have the perpetual and non-exclusive 
right to install, operate, maintain, and replace a sanitary sewer lateral pipe line to serve Lot 29-A.

NOW, THEREFORE, the Declarant hereby declares that Lot 29-A and Lot 8-A shall be held, 
sold, and conveyed subject to the following terms and conditions, which shall attach to and run with the 
land as to the Lots, and shall inure to the benefit of and be binding on all parties having any right, title, or 
interest in any of the Lots and their respective heirs, successors, and assigns.

ARTICLE I

DEFINITIONS

1.1 Declarant.  The term “Declarant” shall mean and refer to Overton Investments, LLC, an 
Alabama limited liability company, its successors and assigns.

1.2 Owner or Owners.  The term “Owner” or “Owners” shall mean and refer to the record owner, 
whether one or more persons or entities (including the Declarant), its heirs, successors, and assigns, of a 



2

fee simple title to any of the Lots, but excluding those parties having such interest merely as security for 
the payment of an obligation.

1.3 Lot or Lots.  The term “Lot” or “Lots” shall mean and refer to the real property more particularly 
described on EXHIBIT B attached hereto and made a part hereof.

1.4 Pipe Line. The term “Pipe Line” shall mean and refer to the private sanitary sewer lateral pipe 
line to be installed, operated, maintained, and replaced on the Pipe Line Corridor.

1.5 Pipe Line Corridor. The term “Pipe Line Corridor” shall mean and refer to the ten (10) feet 
wide strip of land along the Northern boundary of Lot 8-A as depicted on EXHIBIT A.

ARTICLE II

PERMITTED USES AND RESTRICTIONS

2.1 Use of the Pipe Line Corridor. The Declarant hereby covenants and agrees that the Lot 29-A
Owners shall have the perpetual and non-exclusive right to use the Pipe Line Corridor for the installation, 
operation, maintenance, and replacement of the Pipe Line to serve Lot 29-A, including the right of access 
thereto. The right to use the Pipe Line Corridor shall run with the land for the benefit of the Lot 29-A
Owners and the heirs, successors, and assigns of such Owners. As a condition of this use, the Pipe Line
shall be installed, operated, maintained, and replaced to serve Lot 29-A exclusively and shall not be 
utilized in any way to serve any other Lot or other real property.

2.2 Improvements on the Pipe Line Corridor. The Declarants hereby covenants and agrees that 
the Pipe Line Corridor is restricted for the use set forth in Section 2.1 and that no above-ground 
improvements of any nature shall be constructed on the Pipe Line Corridor by the Lot 29-A Owners for 
any purpose whatsoever. The Declarant hereby covenants and agrees that the Lot 8-A Owners shall have 
the right to install fencing and landscaping improvements on the Pipe Line Corridor subject to the 
conditions and restrictions set forth in this Article II. No masonry walls of any kind may be installed on 
the Pipe Line Corridor. The Declarant hereby covenants and agrees that any and all fencing and 
landscaping improvements that may be installed on the Pipe Line Corridor by the Lot 8-A Owners shall 
not cause any damage to the Pipe Line nor unreasonably interfere with the installation, operation, 
maintenance, and replacement of the Pipe Line.

ARTICLE III

OBLIGATIONS

4.1 Installation and Maintenance of Pipe Line. The Declarant shall, at its expense, install the Pipe 
Line underground within the Pipe Line Corridor at a depth to be determined by the Declarant’s engineers.
Thereafter, the Lot 29-A Owners shall be solely responsible for the cost of maintaining and replacing the 
Pipe Line, except in the case of any damages to the Pipe Line caused by the negligence or willful acts of 
the Lot 8-A Owners.

4.2 Damages Caused by Lot 29-A Owners.  The Lot 29-A Owners shall be liable for any damages 
to any property or bodily injury, including death, suffered or incurred by the Lot 8-A Owners as a result 
of the use of the Pipe Line Corridor by the Lot 29-A Owners and its agents and contractors, including the 
cost of reasonable attorney fees and other legal expenses incurred by the Lot 8-A Owners.



3

4.3 Damages Caused by Lot 8-A Owners.  The Lot 8-A Owners shall be liable for any damages to 
any property or bodily injury, including death, suffered or incurred by the Lot 29-A Owners as a result of 
the Lot 8-A Owners’ use of the Pipe Line Corridor by the Lot 8-A Owners and its agents and contractors,
including the cost of reasonable attorney fees and other legal expenses incurred by the Lot 29-A Owners.

4.4 Maintenance Requirements.  The Pipe Line and the Pipe Line Corridor shall be maintained in 
compliance with all applicable laws and regulations. The Lot 29-A Owners shall promptly restore the 
surface of the Pipe Line Corridor in good, neat, and orderly condition at their expense after the 
completion of any maintenance or replacement of the Pipe Line.

4.5 Notice to Lot 8-A Owners. The Lot 29-A Owners shall give written notice to the Lot 8-A
Owners at least 48 hours prior to performing any routine maintenance or replacement of the Pipe Line.
However, in the event of an emergency concerning the Pipe Line the Lot 29-A Owners shall make a 
reasonable attempt to notify the Lot 8-A Owners prior to conducting any activities on the Pipe Line 
Corridor.

4.6 Subordination of the Lien of Mortgagees. The sale or transfer of any Lot pursuant to mortgage 
foreclosure or any proceeding in lieu thereof shall extinguish any judgment lien recorded in connection 
with the enforcement of the obligations set forth in this Article prior to such sale or transfer.

ARTICLE IV

GENERAL

5.1 Grantee's Acceptance.  The grantee of any Lot subject to the coverage of this Declaration, by 
acceptance of the deed or other instrument conveying an interest in or title to, or the execution of a 
contract for the purchase thereof, whether from the Declarant or subsequent Owners of such Lot, shall 
accept such deed or other contract upon and subject to each and all of the provisions of this Declaration 
herein contained.

5.2 Severability.  Every one of the provisions and restrictions contained in this Declaration is hereby 
declared to be independent of, and severable from, the rest of the provisions and restrictions and of and 
from every combination of the provisions and restrictions in this Declaration.  Invalidation by any court 
of any provision or restriction in this Declaration shall in no way affect any of the other provisions or 
restrictions, which shall remain in full force and effect.

5.3 No Waiver.  The failure of any party entitled to enforce any provision of this Declaration shall in 
no event be considered a waiver of the right to do so thereafter, as to the same violation or breach or as to 
such a violation or breach occurring prior or subsequent thereto.

5.4 Governing Law.  This Declaration shall be governed by the laws of the State of Alabama.

5.5 Waiver of Right to Trial by Jury.  The Declarant and the Owners hereby waives the right to a 
trial by jury in the event that any litigation of any claims arising out of this Declaration.

5.6 Successors and Assigns.  This Declaration shall inure to the benefit of respective heirs, 
successors, and assigns of the Declarant and the Owners.

(Remainder of page intentionally left blank.  See following page for signatures.)



4

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Declarant has caused this Declaration to be executed by its duly 
authorized officer or representative on this ________ day of ______________________________ 2019.

DECLARANT:

Overton Investments, LLC

By:

Name: Charles G. Kessler, Jr.

Its: Manager

STATE OF ALABAMA )
COUNTY OF JEFFERSON )

I, the undersigned, a Notary public in and for said County, in said State, hereby certify that 
Charles G. Kessler, Jr., whose name as Manager of Overton Investment, LLC, an Alabama limited 
liability company, acknowledged before me on this day that being informed of the contents of the said 
instrument, he executed the same voluntarily for and as the act of said limited liability company.

GIVEN UNDER MY HAND AND SEAL OF OFFICE this ____ day of ___________________,
2019.

[NOTARY SEAL] Notary Public
My Commission Expires:







Ordinance Number 2837 
Page 1 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2837 
  

AN ORDINANCE TO FURTHER AMEND THE ZONING 
ORDINANCE AND THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, ADOPTED SEPTEMBER 16, 1985, 
AND AS LAST AMENDED SO AS TO CHANGE THE CLASS OF 
DISTRICT ZONING OF PROPERTY FROM VESTAVIA HILLS R-
4 TO VESTAVIA HILLS R-9 
 
BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

as follows:  That the Zoning Ordinance and Zoning Map of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, adopted September 16, 1985, and as last amended so as to change the class of 

district zoning of the following described property from Vestavia Hills R-4 (medium 

density residential district) to Vestavia Hills R-9 (planned residential district):  

3784 Poe Drive 
Lot 8, Block 3, Glass’ 3rd Add to New Merkle 

Jonathan B. Culver, Owner(s) 
 
 BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that said zoning is conditioned upon the 

following conditions:   

1. Rezoning is for detached residential use only; and 
2. Rezoning based upon lot layout and setbacks as presented; and 
3. Rezoning based upon private restrictive covenants as presented. 

 
APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 22nd day of April, 2019. 

 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2837 
Page 2 

 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2837 is a true and correct 
copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Vestavia 
Hills on the 22nd day of April, 2019, as same appears in the official records of said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills City Hall, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, New Merkle 
House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day of ______________, 
2019. 
 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 
 

 









Upon recording return this instrument to:

Overton Investments, LLC
3505 River Bend Road
Birmingham, Alabama 35216

This instrument was prepared by:

Michael M. Partain, Esq.
Attorney at Law
Michael M. Partain, LLC
The Kress Building
301 Nineteenth Street, Suite 501
Birmingham, Alabama 35203

DECLARATION OF COVENANTS
FOR

PRIVATE SANITARY SEWER PIPE LINE CORRIDOR

THIS DECLARATION, made this ________ day of ______________________________,
2019, by Overton Investments, LLC, an Alabama limited liability company, hereinafter referred to as 
the “Declarant”.

W I T N E S S E T H:

WHEREAS, the Declarant is the owner of Lot 8-A and Lot 29-A, according to the Resurvey of 
Lot 8 and Lot 29 of _____________, as recorded in Map Book ____, Page ____, in the Probate Office of 
Jefferson County, Alabama, said Lots being situated in the City of Vestavia Hills; and

WHEREAS, the Declarant has re-subdivided said Lot 8 and Lot 29 to reconfigure Lot 8 and Lot 
29 so as to make Lot 29 a “flag lot” (designated as “Lot 29-A”) in order to accommodate the installation 
of a private sanitary sewer lateral pipeline to serve Lot 29-A that shall connect to the boundary of the 
public right-of-way for Poe Drive as depicted on the map attached hereto as EXHIBIT A and made a part 
hereof; and

WHEREAS, Lot 8 was reconfigured as “Lot 8-A” as shown on EXHIBIT A; and

WHEREAS, as a condition of the re-subdivision of Lot 8 and Lot 29, the Declarant agreed that 
the Lot 29-A Owners and their heirs, successors, and assigns shall have the perpetual and non-exclusive 
right to install, operate, maintain, and replace a sanitary sewer lateral pipe line to serve Lot 29-A.

NOW, THEREFORE, the Declarant hereby declares that Lot 29-A and Lot 8-A shall be held, 
sold, and conveyed subject to the following terms and conditions, which shall attach to and run with the 
land as to the Lots, and shall inure to the benefit of and be binding on all parties having any right, title, or 
interest in any of the Lots and their respective heirs, successors, and assigns.

ARTICLE I

DEFINITIONS

1.1 Declarant.  The term “Declarant” shall mean and refer to Overton Investments, LLC, an 
Alabama limited liability company, its successors and assigns.

1.2 Owner or Owners.  The term “Owner” or “Owners” shall mean and refer to the record owner, 
whether one or more persons or entities (including the Declarant), its heirs, successors, and assigns, of a 



2

fee simple title to any of the Lots, but excluding those parties having such interest merely as security for 
the payment of an obligation.

1.3 Lot or Lots.  The term “Lot” or “Lots” shall mean and refer to the real property more particularly 
described on EXHIBIT B attached hereto and made a part hereof.

1.4 Pipe Line. The term “Pipe Line” shall mean and refer to the private sanitary sewer lateral pipe 
line to be installed, operated, maintained, and replaced on the Pipe Line Corridor.

1.5 Pipe Line Corridor. The term “Pipe Line Corridor” shall mean and refer to the ten (10) feet 
wide strip of land along the Northern boundary of Lot 8-A as depicted on EXHIBIT A.

ARTICLE II

PERMITTED USES AND RESTRICTIONS

2.1 Use of the Pipe Line Corridor. The Declarant hereby covenants and agrees that the Lot 29-A
Owners shall have the perpetual and non-exclusive right to use the Pipe Line Corridor for the installation, 
operation, maintenance, and replacement of the Pipe Line to serve Lot 29-A, including the right of access 
thereto. The right to use the Pipe Line Corridor shall run with the land for the benefit of the Lot 29-A
Owners and the heirs, successors, and assigns of such Owners. As a condition of this use, the Pipe Line
shall be installed, operated, maintained, and replaced to serve Lot 29-A exclusively and shall not be 
utilized in any way to serve any other Lot or other real property.

2.2 Improvements on the Pipe Line Corridor. The Declarants hereby covenants and agrees that 
the Pipe Line Corridor is restricted for the use set forth in Section 2.1 and that no above-ground 
improvements of any nature shall be constructed on the Pipe Line Corridor by the Lot 29-A Owners for 
any purpose whatsoever. The Declarant hereby covenants and agrees that the Lot 8-A Owners shall have 
the right to install fencing and landscaping improvements on the Pipe Line Corridor subject to the 
conditions and restrictions set forth in this Article II. No masonry walls of any kind may be installed on 
the Pipe Line Corridor. The Declarant hereby covenants and agrees that any and all fencing and 
landscaping improvements that may be installed on the Pipe Line Corridor by the Lot 8-A Owners shall 
not cause any damage to the Pipe Line nor unreasonably interfere with the installation, operation, 
maintenance, and replacement of the Pipe Line.

ARTICLE III

OBLIGATIONS

4.1 Installation and Maintenance of Pipe Line. The Declarant shall, at its expense, install the Pipe 
Line underground within the Pipe Line Corridor at a depth to be determined by the Declarant’s engineers.
Thereafter, the Lot 29-A Owners shall be solely responsible for the cost of maintaining and replacing the 
Pipe Line, except in the case of any damages to the Pipe Line caused by the negligence or willful acts of 
the Lot 8-A Owners.

4.2 Damages Caused by Lot 29-A Owners.  The Lot 29-A Owners shall be liable for any damages 
to any property or bodily injury, including death, suffered or incurred by the Lot 8-A Owners as a result 
of the use of the Pipe Line Corridor by the Lot 29-A Owners and its agents and contractors, including the 
cost of reasonable attorney fees and other legal expenses incurred by the Lot 8-A Owners.



3

4.3 Damages Caused by Lot 8-A Owners.  The Lot 8-A Owners shall be liable for any damages to 
any property or bodily injury, including death, suffered or incurred by the Lot 29-A Owners as a result of 
the Lot 8-A Owners’ use of the Pipe Line Corridor by the Lot 8-A Owners and its agents and contractors,
including the cost of reasonable attorney fees and other legal expenses incurred by the Lot 29-A Owners.

4.4 Maintenance Requirements.  The Pipe Line and the Pipe Line Corridor shall be maintained in 
compliance with all applicable laws and regulations. The Lot 29-A Owners shall promptly restore the 
surface of the Pipe Line Corridor in good, neat, and orderly condition at their expense after the 
completion of any maintenance or replacement of the Pipe Line.

4.5 Notice to Lot 8-A Owners. The Lot 29-A Owners shall give written notice to the Lot 8-A
Owners at least 48 hours prior to performing any routine maintenance or replacement of the Pipe Line.
However, in the event of an emergency concerning the Pipe Line the Lot 29-A Owners shall make a 
reasonable attempt to notify the Lot 8-A Owners prior to conducting any activities on the Pipe Line 
Corridor.

4.6 Subordination of the Lien of Mortgagees. The sale or transfer of any Lot pursuant to mortgage 
foreclosure or any proceeding in lieu thereof shall extinguish any judgment lien recorded in connection 
with the enforcement of the obligations set forth in this Article prior to such sale or transfer.

ARTICLE IV

GENERAL

5.1 Grantee's Acceptance.  The grantee of any Lot subject to the coverage of this Declaration, by 
acceptance of the deed or other instrument conveying an interest in or title to, or the execution of a 
contract for the purchase thereof, whether from the Declarant or subsequent Owners of such Lot, shall 
accept such deed or other contract upon and subject to each and all of the provisions of this Declaration 
herein contained.

5.2 Severability.  Every one of the provisions and restrictions contained in this Declaration is hereby 
declared to be independent of, and severable from, the rest of the provisions and restrictions and of and 
from every combination of the provisions and restrictions in this Declaration.  Invalidation by any court 
of any provision or restriction in this Declaration shall in no way affect any of the other provisions or 
restrictions, which shall remain in full force and effect.

5.3 No Waiver.  The failure of any party entitled to enforce any provision of this Declaration shall in 
no event be considered a waiver of the right to do so thereafter, as to the same violation or breach or as to 
such a violation or breach occurring prior or subsequent thereto.

5.4 Governing Law.  This Declaration shall be governed by the laws of the State of Alabama.

5.5 Waiver of Right to Trial by Jury.  The Declarant and the Owners hereby waives the right to a 
trial by jury in the event that any litigation of any claims arising out of this Declaration.

5.6 Successors and Assigns.  This Declaration shall inure to the benefit of respective heirs, 
successors, and assigns of the Declarant and the Owners.

(Remainder of page intentionally left blank.  See following page for signatures.)



4

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Declarant has caused this Declaration to be executed by its duly 
authorized officer or representative on this ________ day of ______________________________ 2019.

DECLARANT:

Overton Investments, LLC

By:

Name: Charles G. Kessler, Jr.

Its: Manager

STATE OF ALABAMA )
COUNTY OF JEFFERSON )

I, the undersigned, a Notary public in and for said County, in said State, hereby certify that 
Charles G. Kessler, Jr., whose name as Manager of Overton Investment, LLC, an Alabama limited 
liability company, acknowledged before me on this day that being informed of the contents of the said 
instrument, he executed the same voluntarily for and as the act of said limited liability company.

GIVEN UNDER MY HAND AND SEAL OF OFFICE this ____ day of ___________________,
2019.

[NOTARY SEAL] Notary Public
My Commission Expires:







Ordinance Number 2840
Page 1

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2841 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 5 OF ORDINANCE 
NUMBER 2427 AND SECTION 10-14(e), VESTAVIA HILLS CODE 
OF ORDINANCES, REP. 2013 ENTITLED ‘EDUCATIONAL 
PROGRAMS”  

 
THIS ORDINANCE NUMBER 2841 is approved and adopted by the City 

Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama on this the 22nd day of April, 2019. 

 

WITNESSETH THESE RECITALS: 

WHEREAS, on April 22, 2019, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, adopted and approved Ordinance Number 2427 to establish and create the 

Alcohol Abuse Education Program and the Traffic Safety Education Program for the 

Municipal Court of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama; and 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council feel it is in the best public interest to 

amend Section 5 of said Ordinance Number 2427 to reallocate the distribution of funds 

derived from said program. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY 

COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, SECTION 5 OF 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2427 AND SECTION 10-14(e), VESTAVIA HILLS CODE 

OF ORDINANCES REP. 2013 ENTITLED “EDUCATIONAL PROGRAMS” ARE 

AMENDED IN ITS ENTIRETY AS FOLLOWS: 

“(e)  All monies collected as a result of the operation of the Alcohol Abuse Education 

Program and the Traffic Safety Education Program in the form of registration fees, 

evaluation fees and/or tuition fees shall be maintained in a separate account with the City 

Finance Department to be distributed as follows: 

(a) to fully cover the cost of services provided by the previously 

mentioned education programs; 

(b) an amount equivalent to Forty Dollars and Fifty Cents 

($40.50) per individual participant to the City’s “Court and Correction 

Fund”; and 

(c) an amount equivalent to Ten Dollars ($10.00) per applicant 

to the “Municipal Court Judicial Administrative Fund”; and 

(d) an amount equivalent to Thirty Seven Dollars ($37.00) per 



Ordinance Number 2840
Page 2

 

applicant along with all rescheduling fees shall be applied to the “Court 

Technology Fund”; and 

(e) all remaining monies to be used for the purpose of providing 

various other traffic safety education and awareness programs to the 

Vestavia Hills community through the Traffic Safety Office of the Vestavia 

Hills Police Department or any other police activities including training of 

officers. The collection and use of these monies shall be under the 

supervision of the Police Chief and Finance Director.” 

Effective Date: This ordinance shall become effective upon its approval, adoption, 

enactment and publication by posting as set forth in Title 11-45-8(b), Code of Alabama, 

1975. 

Severability: If any part, section or subdivision of this ordinance shall be held 

unconstitutional or invalid for any reason, such holding shall not be construed to invalidate 

or impair the remainder of this ordinance which shall continue in full force and effect 

notwithstanding such holding. 

DONE, ORDERED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 22nd day of April, 

2019.    

 

 

Ashley C. Curry  
Mayor 

ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 

Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2840
Page 3

 

 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 

 
 

I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance //// is a true and correct 
copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Vestavia 
Hills on the 22nd day of April, 2019 as same appears in the official records of said City. 

 
Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills New Merkle House, 

Vestavia Hills Civic Center and Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest this the  day 
of  , 2019. 

 
 

Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 

 



Ordinance Number 2842 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2842 
 
 AN ORDINANCE TO ALTER, REARRANGE, AND EXTEND THE 

CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, 
ALABAMA, SO AS TO EMBRACE AND INCLUDE WITHIN THE 
CORPORATE AREA OF SAID CITY ALL TERRITORY NOW 
WITHIN SUCH CORPORATE LIMITS AND ALSO CERTAIN 
OTHER TERRITORY CONTIGUOUS TO SAID CITY. 

 
  WHEREAS, certain petitions signed by various owners dated November 

19, 2018, that the property therein described be annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, together with a map of said territory showing its relationship to the corporate 

limits of the City, has been filed with the City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills; and 

  WHEREAS, this Council has determined and found that the matters set 

forth and alleged in said petition are true and correct, and that it is in the public interest that 

said territory be annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills; 

  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

  SECTION 1.  That said Council hereby assents to the annexation of said 

territory to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, the corporate limits of the City to be 

extended and rearranged pursuant to the provisions of Title 11, Chapter 42, Article 2, Code 

of Alabama, 1975 (Sections 11-42-20 through 11-42-23, as amended) so as to embrace and 

include said territory, in addition to the territory already within its present corporate limits.  

The new boundary line does not lie at any point more than half the distance between the 

old city boundary and the corporate boundary of any other municipality.  Said territory is 

described as follows: 

 
1. 2400 Magnolia Cove Road; Lot 1, Magnolia Cove Estates; Chase Beard, Owner 
2. 2404 Magnolia Cove Road; Lot 2, Magnolia Cove Estates; Randel Walker, 

Owner 
3. 2408 Magnolia Cove Road; Lot 3, Magnolia Cove Estates; David and Jenice 

Adcock 
4. 2412 Magnolia Cove Road; Lot 4, Magnolia Cove Estates; Frank and Phyllis 

Hamrick, Owners 
5. 2416 Magnolia Cove Road; Lot 5, Magnolia Cove Estates; Kay Watkins, 

Owner 
6. 2420 Magnolia Cove Road; Lot 6, Magnolia Cove Estates; Chase Beard, Owner 
7. 2424 Magnolia Cove Road; Lot 7, Magnolia Cove Estates; Chase Beard, Owner 



Ordinance Number 2842 
Page 2 

 

8. 2423 Magnolia Cove Road; Lot 8, Magnolia Cove Estates; Chase Beard, Owner 
9. 2419 Magnolia Cove Road; Lot 9, Magnolia Cove Estates; Martin Cogen, 

Owner 
10. 2415 Magnolia Cove Road; Lot 10, Magnolia Cove Estates; John and Lynda 

Gay, Owners 
11. 2409 Magnolia Cove Road; Lot 11, Magnolia Cove Estates; David and Tammy 

Doward, Owners 
12. 2405 Magnolia Cove Road; Lot 12, Magnolia Cove Estates; Thomas and Jane 

Walker, Owners 
13. 2401 Magnolia Cove Road; Lot 13, Magnolia Cove Estates; Chase Beard, 

Owner 
 

  SECTION 2.  That the City Clerk shall file a certified copy of this Ordinance 

containing an accurate description of said annexed territory with the Probate Judge of 

Jefferson County, Alabama, and also cause a copy of this Ordinance to be published/posted 

in accordance with Alabama law. 

  APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 22nd day of April, 2019. 

 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 



Ordinance Number 2842 
Page 3 

 

 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance 2842 is a true and correct 
copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Vestavia 
Hills on the 22nd day of April, 2019, as same appears in the official records of said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, 
Vestavia Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ 
day of ______________, 2019. 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2842 
Page 4 

 

 



Magnolia Cove Subdivision



Magnolia Cove Subdivision














































































	2019_0408CC_A
	Day of Prayer Proc 2019
	Proclamation Volunteer
	2019_0311CC_M
	2019_0318CC_Work session

	2019_0318CC_M

	PIM Presentation_040819_2
	Resolution 5148
	Ordinance 2833
	Ordinance 2843
	Resolution 5150
	Resolution 5151
	Ordinance 2840
	Ordinance 2838
	Ordinance 2839
	Ordinance 2835
	Ordinance 2836
	Ordinance 2837
	Ordinance 2841
	Ordinance 2842



